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SILKROUTE
Extended over 6,000 miles, the Silk Route was one of the oldest infrastructure of Trade 
routes formally established during the era of Han Dynasty of China. Collectively 
known as Silk Routes, these routes linked the regions of ancient world by commerce 
since 130 BCE. Existing for almost 3000 years, Silk Routes laid down the path of 
global economic progress by commercial exchange among traders, merchants, pilgrims, 
missionaries, soldiers, rulers, nomads and urban dwellers from Ancient China, India, 
Persia, Turkey, Syria, Iran, Iraq, Japan, and regions along the Central Asia, South 
Asia Mediterranean and Africa. As the name suggests, Silk Route was earlier 
used to trade Silk but soon transformed into a multi-cultural trade monument. Based 
on this legendary foundation, the legacy of Silk Route has come alive through its recent 
revival i.e. China-Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). CPEC is an ongoing 
developmental megaproject which will provide essential infrastructure to facilitate 
trade in Asia and Middle East, with a promise of continuing progress for the region.

Central Depository Company was established as a Market Infrastructure institution 
to facilitate trade in the stock market. Since last 18 years, CDC has altered the course 
of Pakistan Capital Market towards prosperity and helped attain international 
recognition by introducing automated solutions to counter problems faced by Investors. 
We foster the concept of transparency in business by bringing all stakeholders on the 
same page. We have provided the investor community with safest trading dimensions.

On the same lines, we have recently introduced a number of new services including 
Back Office Accounting Services and Centralized Information Sharing Solution for 
Insurance Industry (CISSII). These services are aimed at revolutionizing different 
industrial sectors of our economy.

 Similar to the traders on Silk Route, the people of Pakistan Capital Market are en 
route to progress as CDC continues to pave the way for them.

EN ROUTE TO PROGRESS





Luxury is often denoted by Silk. For ages, silk making was kept a 
secret; leaving humanity in awe. This magnificent item was thus one 
of the early impulses in the development of Silk Route. Later, Silk 
Route was also used to transport textiles, spices, grains, vegetables, as 
well as art; hence acting as a catalyst for cross-cultural development.

The idea behind CDC’s inception was to create an infrastructure institution that would 
add efficiency, transparency and swiftness to Capital Market functions. Our engagement 
towards identifying gaps in Capital Market operations enables us to provide flawless 
solutions. Our customer focused ideology pushes us to exceed the perceived level of 
excellence in service quality. The introduction of Central Depository System changed 
the landscape of Pakistan Capital Market and the utmost loyalty displayed by our 
clients is a perfect depiction of how we continuously exceed their expectations.

Bringing Excellence to Our Stakeholders



There is absolutely no alternative to experience. We learn from our 
experiences and through it, we gain wisdom. The Silk Route was not 
limited to transportation of goods; it paved the way for the spread of 
knowledge and wisdom of civilizations & dynasties through caravans 
of merchants, travelers and pilgrims.

Over the span of 18 years, our success has been our best teacher. By analyzing the 
market response, expectations and customer satisfaction associated with the launch of 
our primary service CDS, we learned the dynamics of Pakistan Capital Market. These 
learnings continue to help us identify areas that need our attention and fuel our need 
to diversify. Our progress encouraged us to add multiple groundbreaking services to our 
arsenal.

The revolutionary Capital Market that we see today is a result of how we transformed 
our learnings into concrete solutions to address inherent problems. These services 
define us and our ideology of mutual growth. 

Learning  from Our Experiences







The world’s most groundbreaking technologies advanced through 
the Silk Route for centuries. Science of Navigation and Astronomy 
are just a few examples among a long list. It also served as a ground 
for medicinal exchanges as the science of herbal medicines from 
ancient China penetrated the world through these routes.

The excellence with which we serve our clients does not only account to human factor 
but the credit is equally shared by our evolutionary technology infrastructure. As 
evident from our history of diversifying into multiple dimensions, we do not settle at 
any point. Our faith in continuous development has helped us evolve into a highly 
sought-after entity. This ideology does not change when it comes to our technology 
standards. We constantly keep on upgrading our business management softwares and 
information security programs to match the international benchmark. The efforts we 
donate to this cause are evident from the fact that all our employed technology 
standards have been acknowledged internationally.

Staying Up-To-The-Minute





Ideas are indestructible; they pass on to generations and often lead to 
evolution. The ideas and inventions that travelled through the Silk 
Route changed the course of humanity’s growth. Rulers, Buttons, 
Paper and the Art of Shipmaking are still used all around the world.

Embodiment of creativity in everything we do is what makes us stand out. We broke 
bond with the traditional and prevalent ways of doing things as evident from our 
innovative service portfolio, leaving us with highly satisfied clients. Our sheer tenacity 
empowers us to go way beyond the traditional approach and enables us to creatively 
serve our clients, whether it comes to information access, account management, or 
customer support. Upon analyzing the gaps in Pakistan’s Insurance Industry, we came 
up with an innovation solution known as Centralized Information Sharing Solution 
for Insurance Industry (CISSII). CISSII is the first information sharing solution for 
Insurance Sector to be introduced in Pakistan which is now in the stages of becoming 
an Insurance Repository soon.

Being Creative in Our Services





Cultural Exchange is a vital aspect of trade. Travelers along the Silk 
Route learned the languages and traditions of connecting cultures in 
order to be better negotiators. This influenced the exchange of Art 
& Crafts, Literature, Architecture and Customs which resulted into 
cross-cultural development. The Silk Route was the first true face of 
Globalization. 

When we introduced the securities depository, people of our nation were new to the 
concept of electronic shares trading. We had a tremendous task to convince and 
educate our clients while being efficient in our operations. This enabled us to escalate 
the growth of Capital Market as well as the overall economy. These struggles to help 
our nation grow created a unique footprint for us. Our innovative service portfolio 
helped change the entire landscape of Capital Market and gave us a unique identity in 
the process. Our identity signifies transparency, protection, neutrality, excellence and 
mutual growth. To sum it up, we are the epitome of Trust. The fact that CDC’s Trustee 
Business has more than 95% of the total market share, provides an excellent indicator 
of the amount of trust our clients have on us.

Giving Ourselves an Exciting Identity
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CDC is committed to provide secured and dependable 
services to the capital and financial markets in an efficient 
& cost effective manner comparable to best international 
practices. The Company’s aim is to be the centre of 
excellence by continuously employing the state-of-the-art 
technology available and best talent in the country while 
maintaining good corporate governance in its working. It is 
committed to provide its employees an environment of  
professional and personal growth.



To be a leading national institution providing 
quality services to capital and financial markets 
stimulating economic growth.



CORE
VALUES

Our corporate values represent the core priorities 
in the organization’s culture. Adherence to these 
values makes it possible for us to continue on the 
road to sustainable development. Dispensing with 
our corporate responsibility, we are able to honor 
our commitments to our clients, partners, 
shareholders and to our most valuable resource, 
our employees.



RELIABILITY
- We are reliable & trustworthy for all our stakeholders.
- We ensure authenticity and security of information.

INTEGRITY
- We are fair & honest in all our dealings.
- We take responsibility for all our actions.
- We ensure complete confidentiality of information entrusted to us.
- We strive to perform to the best of our abilities.

TRANSPARENCY
- Our policies & procedures are clearly defined,
 well-communicated and applied equally to all.
- We make adequate disclosure of company information.
- We strongly adhere to the best practices of Corporate Governance.
- We promote a culture of open communication at work.

EFFICIENCY
- We strive for innovative, optimal solutions for clients and internal 
 workings at all times in line with international best practices.
- We remain proactively sensitive to the clients’ and market needs.
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Husain Lawai
Chairman

Muhammad Hanif Jhakura
Chief Executive Officer

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura joined CDC in 1994 and 
was elevated to the position of CEO in March 2002. He was 
also appointed as the first Chief Executive Officer of 
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) in 
January 2002 and served in that position as well up to 
September 2005. 

Mr. Jakhura’s initiative in adopting diversification as one of 
CDC’s major strategic objectives has resulted in the 
establishment of CDC’s Trustee & Custodial Services, 
Registrar & Transfer Agent services and ITMinds Limited (a 
wholly owned subsidiary of CDC).

Mr. Jakhura has also been elected as the Chairman of 
Executive Committee of Asia-Pacific Central Securities 
Depositories Group for 2014-16. With this appointment, 
he represents the Asia-Pacific Region on the Executive 
Board of World Forum of CSDs (WFC), the global body of 
five regional CSD associations. Mr. Jakhura has 
represented both CDC and the Pakistan Capital Market on 
several national, regional and international platforms like 
the Association of National Numbering Agencies (ANNA) 
based in Brussels and International Securities Services 
Association (ISSA).

In January 2015, he has been chosen by SECP as the head 
of a committee which will help set up ‘Capital Market Hubs’ 
in small cities of Pakistan to attract savings for 
investments in capital market.

He is serving as a Director in Pakistan Mercantile Exchange 
Limited (as an independent director), Institute of Capital 
Markets, and ITMinds Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary 
of CDC). 

Mr. Jakhura is a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and a Certified 
Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance (PICG) since 2007.

Mr. Husain Lawai is the President and CEO of Summit 
Bank Limited since November 2008. He is serving on the 
Boards of GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan, Wyeth Pakistan 
Limited and The Searle Company Limited.

He is a seasoned banker having vast experience in the 
banking and financial services industry and has 
previously served as President and Chief Executive 
Officer at MCB Bank and Director, Security Investment 
and Finance Limited, UK. He established Faysal Islamic 
Bank, Pakistan Branches, the first Islamic Sharia 
Compliant Bank (now known as Faysal Bank Limited) in 
Pakistan and was General Manager, Emirates NBD Bank 
for Pakistan and Far East. 

Mr. Lawai is also on the Board of Governors of Karachi 
Grammar School & Virtual University of Pakistan.

He holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration 
from Institute of Business Administration, Karachi.
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Abid Ali Habib
Director

Ahsan Muhammad Saleem
Director

Mr. Ahsan M. Saleem is Group Chief Executive of Crescent 
Steel and Allied Products Limited and has over 32 years of 
extensive industry experience. He is a leader in managing 
multiple, large business operations in various sectors of 
the Pakistan industry including Sugar, Textiles and 
Engineering. He also serves on several professional 
Boards as a non-executive director.

He is a recipient of the 1997 “Businessman of the Year” 
award from the then Prime Minister of Pakistan. Mr. 
Saleem is a fellow of the Institute of Directors, U.K, a 
member of CEO’s organization and World Presidents 
Organization and a member of 1001- a nature trust.

Mr. Saleem is a strong supporter of education and is 
actively involved in key leadership roles in local, regional 
and international developmental organizations. He is one 
of the five founders of The Citizens Foundation (TCF) and 
currently serves on its Board. He has previously served as 
Chairman of the Board of TCF, for two terms - TCF is a not 
for profit organization working across Pakistan to provide 
formal schooling for the most impoverished segment of the 
population, TCF has, so far, built 1,060 school units in over 
109 towns and cities across Pakistan.

He also serves as Managing Trustee of COMMECS 
Education Trust, a not for profit trust formed by Old 
Students of Government College of Commerce and 
Economics, providing tertiary level education in Karachi. 
He is the Chairman of Board of Governors of COMMECS 
Institute of Business and Emerging Sciences (a degree 
awarding Institution Chartered by Government of Sindh). 
Mr. Saleem is a founding member and serves on the Board 
of Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy.

Mr. Abid Ali Habib is the Chairman and Chief Executive of 
Abid Ali Habib Securities (Private) Limited and the Director 
of Aba Ali Habib Securities (Private) Limited.

Mr. Habib has been nominated on CDC’s Board by the 
Board of Directors of KSE. At CDC, he also serves as 
Deputy President of Disciplinary Tribunal and member of 
Audit Committee. In the past, he has been elected as 
Director of KSE for various terms between the years 1995 
and 2011 and is now on the Board for the first term of 3 
years in demutualized environment. During these years, he 
has chaired various Committees constituted by the Board. 

He played the central role in conceptualization, planning 
and design of internet-based order routing system and also 
supervised, implemented and tested Karachi Automated 
Trading System. As member of Demutualization Committee 
of KSE during the years 2005, 2006 and 2010, Mr. Habib 
was the key figure in preparation of Preliminary Report on 
proposed demutualization of KSE, identifying  various  
issues  and  recommendations  thereon,  in  line  with  
existing  models  and international practices.

Mr. Habib held the position of Chairman, Companies 
Affairs/Corporate Governance Committee of KSE for the 
years 2010 and 2011. Some  of  the major achievements  
of this term included (i) various amendments in Listing 
Regulations; (ii) action against delinquent/non-performing 
companies in violation of Listing Regulations; (iii) revision 
of annual listing fee; (iv) mechanism for verification of 
rumor mongering in the market pertaining to listed 
companies/securities; (v) implementation of revised Code 
of Corporate Governance; (vi) measures for disclosure of 
information to market participants/investors pertaining to 
sale/purchase of securities by any director, CEO or 
executive or their spouses; and (vii) revision of criteria for 
selection of Top Companies.
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Ayaz Ahmed
Director

Kamal Afsar
Director

Mr. Kamal Afsar has over 40 years of rich and unique 
blend of professional experience which encompasses 
working for the corporate sector, trade diplomacy and 
running the affairs of the Government, both in Pakistan 
and abroad.

Mr. Afsar has held directorships at various large 
corporate sector entities in Pakistan. He was Chairman, 
State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan, Chairman 
and CEO, Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited, and 
Chairman and CEO, Pakistan Automobile Corporation 
Limited. He has also served as the Managing Director, 
Karachi Electric Supply Corporation Limited and CEO, 
National Tanker Company.

Working for the public sector, Mr. Afsar has held the 
position of the Federal Commerce Secretary where he 
was involved in decision making at the highest level in 
matters concerning Pakistan's economy. He remained 
Consul General of Pakistan at Hong Kong for over 5 
years, gathering hands-on experience in international 
trade and diplomacy.

At the Karachi Stock Exchange, besides being a director on 
the Board, he is also nominated as member of Regulatory 
Affairs Committee and Human Resources & Remuneration 
Committee of the Board. He is also a member of the Board 
of Directors at Bank Islami Limited. 

He is a former International Player and Captain of 
Pakistan Table Tennis Team and former Vice President, 
Asian Table Tennis Union. He is also the former 
Chairman, Karachi Race Club.

Mr. Afsar holds a post-graduate degree in Economics 
and International Relations.

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed is the Head, Acquisitions and 
Investments of Habib Bank Limited (HBL) and a member 
of the Management Forum of the Bank. He joined HBL in 
the capacity of CFO in 2000.

He had served as HBL’s Chief Information Officer for 
several years and was involved in its large scale 
technology and process reengineering. His area of 
expertise is in supply chain and straight through 
processing.

Presently, he is a Director of Jubilee Life Insurance Company 
Limited and Central Depository Company. In the past, he  
has served as a Director on the Board of Habib Allied Bank 
(Plc.) UK. He has also served as the Chairman of 1Link – 
National Switch, NIFT – National Cheque Clearing Company 
and Habib Currency Exchange (Pvt.) Limited.

Mr. Ahmed is an active member of ICAP where he has 
served on several committees including the Banking 
subcommittee and the Professional Standards & 
Technical Committee and also as a member of the Quality 
Assurance Board.

He is a Senior Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Scotland (since 1984), having trained 
with Arthur Andersen and has completed his schooling 
and his Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering 
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, UK. 

Mr. Ahmed is an Alumni of Harvard Business School, 
Boston.
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Muhammad Aslam
Director

Mohammed Sohail
Director

Mr. Mohammed Sohail is the Chief Executive Officer of 
Topline Securities (Private) Limited with an extensive 
experience of over 20 years of Pakistan Capital Market.

He is regarded as one of the most prominent capital 
market analysts of the country. He was given the first ever 
'Best Analyst' award by CFA Association of Pakistan for two 
consecutive years in 2003 & 2004. Asiamoney awarded 
him the title of 'Best Salesperson' in Pakistan for four 
consecutive years (2011-2014). Before joining Topline 
Securities, he worked as Director Broking with JS Global 
Capital Limited and as Head of Research at Invest Capital 
Investment Bank Limited.

He has been elected as a Director on KSE's Board in 2011 
and again on September 25, 2012 for a term of 3 years. 
Currently, Mr. Sohail is the Chairman of KSE’s New Product 
and Market Development Committee and a member of 
Audit Committee of KSE’s Board. Previously, he has served 
as a member of various committees including New Product 
& Market Development Committee, Index Experts 
Committee, Arbitration Committee, etc. He is also on the 
board of rating agency JCR-VIS. Moreover, he has served 
on different committees formed by the Securities 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and State Bank 
of Pakistan (SBP).

Mr. Muhammad Aslam belonged to the Federal 
Government’s Secretariat Group and retired as Joint 
Secretary on 14th August, 2015 from Debt Office, 
Finance Division. He has an extensive experience of 
holding important administrative positions in various 
Ministries.

Mr. Aslam has served as Director on IDBL’s Board from 
2012 to 2014 and has been re-elected on IDBL’s Board 
for a term of three years with effect from 29th May 2014. 
Previously, he has served as Director on Equity 
Participation Fund (EPF) Board. 

Mr. Aslam holds a Bachelors Degree in Economics from 
University of Punjab, Lahore and attended various 
trainings in Pakistan, USA, UK and China.
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Muhammad Tariq Rafi
Director

Omar Khalil Malik
Director

Mr. Omar Khalil Malik is the Director of Networth 
Securities Limited. He is also a Director on the Board of 
Lahore Stock Exchange Limited where at present; he is a 
Member of the Audit Committee, Company Affairs 
Committee, Demutualization Committee and the Human 
Resource Committee. He is also a Director on the Board 
of LSE Facilities Management Company Limited, SPOT 
Commodity Trading and Warehousing Management 
Company Limited and Pakistan – Sri Lanka Business 
Council.

Mr. Malik is also a Member of the Human Resource 
Committee of CDC’s Board and also a Director on the board 
of CDC Trustee Company Limited.

He had been a Director of LSE for the years 2006, 2007, 
2009, 2010 and 2012 to date. Earlier he had also been a 
Director on the Boards of National Clearing Company of 
Pakistan Limited and The Institute of Capital Market. Mr. 
Malik has served LSE through a variety of volunteer 
positions on various Committees of the Exchange offering 
him a broad perspective and deep understanding of the 
issues facing LSE and has been the Chairman of Company 
Affairs Committee, Regulatory Affairs Committee and IT 
Steering Committee. He has volunteered countless hours to 
several Committees including, Audit Committee, Human 
Resource Committee, Trading Affairs Committee, Building 
Committee, Membership Committee, Demutualization 
Committee, Legal Affairs Committee and IT Committee etc.

Mr. Malik holds a Master Degree in Business 
Administration and is a Certified Director from Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance and ICAP. He has 
studied in institutions including Cardiff Business School 
(University of Wales), Institute of Management Sciences 
and Hailey College (University of the Punjab).

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi is the Chairman of Siddiqsons 
Group and a sponsor director of MCB Bank Limited. He is 
also honorary Consul General of Republic of Serbia for 
Pakistan. He has been awarded the coveted civil award of 
“Sitara-e-Imtiaz” by the President of Pakistan in 2006 for 
his services to the industry and trade.

A business graduate from the University of Karachi, he also 
received the Best Businessman Award for the year 1999 
from Prime Minister of Pakistan and also the Best 
Businessman Award for the year 2012 from the President 
of Pakistan. Mr. Rafi has also established the first Tin Plate 
and Denim Plants in Pakistan.
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Shahid Ghaffar
Director

Syed Majid Ali
Director

Syed Majid Ali is serving as Chief Financial Officer at Faysal 
Bank Limited. He is a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. He has 25 years of 
diversified experience of progressively increasing 
responsibility in the accounts and finance disciplines of 
banking, with exposure in IT and HR activities. He has been 
associated as a CFO with Emirates Bank International and 
Saudi Pak Commercial Bank, as well as with KPMG as 
Partner.

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar is the Managing Director of National 
Investment Trust Limited (NITL). Prior to joining NIT, he was 
working as Head of Investor Relations and Corporate 
Representation as well as member of Management Forum 
at Habib Bank Limited (HBL).  He has also served as Chief 
Executive Officer of HBL Asset Management Limited for 
over six years. 

Mr. Ghaffar has held key positions in the areas of asset 
management, capital market regulation and governance. 
At Securities And Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP), he served as Executive Director/Commissioner 
from 2000 to 2005 and played a vital role towards 
implementation of wide ranging reforms in the Capital 
Market and capacity building of Securities Market Division. 
While working as Managing Director/CEO Karachi Stock 
Exchange during his two years’ tenure (1998-2000) he 
introduced effective risk management measures and was 
also instrumental in the automation of trading and 
enhancing capacity building.  

During the period 1977-1998, Mr. Ghaffar served National 
Investment Trust Limited (NITL) in different capacities in 
the Asset Management Division and at various stages; he 
was responsible for managing equity market portfolio, 
debt/fixed income portfolio and trading desk. In 1996, Mr. 
Ghaffar was entrusted with the responsibility of Asset 
Management Division.  

Mr. Ghaffar holds a Masters Degree in Business 
Administration from Gomal University – K.P.K, Pakistan. He 
has attended several courses on Securities Regulations 
and Securities Markets Development and Portfolio 
Management including the prestigious course conducted 
by Securities and Exchange Commission, in Washington, 
DC (US). 
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E. Syed Asif Shah
 Chief Information Officer

D. Shariq Naseem
 Head of Marketing &
 Product Development

C. Abdul Samad
 Head of Trustee & Custodial Services
 – Unit II and Share Registrar Services

H. Atiqur Rehman
 Head of Trustee &
 Custodial Services – Unit I

I. Farooq Hussain
 Head of Administration

G. Shariq Jafrani
 CFO & Company Secretary

K. Hammad Ali Faisal
 Chief Internal Auditor

L. Junaid Shekha
 CEO - ITMinds Limited

J. M. Anwar Gopalani
 Head of Human Resources

A. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
 Chief Executive Officer

F. Badiuddin Akbar
 Chief Compliance & Risk Officer

B. Aftab Ahmed Diwan
 Chief Operating Officer
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CFO & Company Secretary:

Shariq Jafrani

Registered Office:

CDC House
99-B, Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Auditors:

Legal Advisors:

M/s. Orr, Dignam & Co.
Advocates

M/s. Bawaney & Partners
Advocates & Investment & Corporate Advisers

M/s. A.K. Brohi & Co.
Legal Consultants & Advocates

M/s. Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultant / Barristers & Advocate

M/s. Ijaz Ahmed & Associates
Advocates & Legal Consultants

High Courts & Supreme Court

M/s. Mandviwalla & Zafar
Advocates

COMPANY INFORMATION

M/s. Haidermota & Co.
Barristers-at-Law & Corporate Counsellors

M/s. Hassan Kaunain Nafees
Legal Practitioners & Advisors

M/s. Shah & Michael Law Firm
Advocate

M/s. Sayeed  & Sayeed
Advocate & Legal Consultants

Bankers:

Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

M/s. Ahmed & Qazi
Advocates & Legal Consultants
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SHAREHOLDING

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

Karachi Stock Exchange Limited *
Lahore Stock Exchange Limited *
Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation
MCB Bank Limited *
Habib Bank Limited *
National Investment Trust Limited
Industrial Development Bank Limited
NIB Bank Limited
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited *
Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited 
Allied Bank Limited
IGI Insurance  Limited
Innovative Investment Bank Limited 
Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Limited

39.80
10.00
10.00
10.00
6.35
6.35
5.00
5.00
2.75
2.50
1.00
0.65
0.50
0.10

25,875,200
6,500,000
6,500,000
6,500,000
4,124,901
4,124,900
3,250,000
3,250,000
1,787,500
1,625,000

650,000
422,499
325,000
65,000

S. # Shareholders Total No. of
Shares Held

% of
Shareholding

Total 65,000,000 100%

* The figures include number of shares allotted in the names of nominee directors representing their institutions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

1
2
3
4
5

Mr. Kamal Afsar
Mr. Abid Ali Habib
Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Syed Majid Ali

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

1
2
3
4

Mr. Husain Lawai
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Kamal Afsar

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation
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HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1
2
3
4
5

Mr. Husain Lawai
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Mr. Mohammed Sohail
Mr. Omar Khalil Malik
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Mr. Kamal Afsar
Mr. Abid Ali Habib
Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Mohammed Sohail
Mr. Muhammad Aslam
Syed Majid Ali

President
Deputy President

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation

DISCIPLINARY PANEL/TRIBUNAL
[Formed under the CDC Regulations for the purpose of conducting Disciplinary Proceedings]

NOMINATION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE FOR THE BOARD

1
2
3
4

Mr. Husain Lawai
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Kamal Afsar

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Mr. Abdul Samad
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman
Mr. Badiuddin Akber
Mr. Farooq Hussain
Mr. Hammad Ali Faisal
Mr. Junaid Shekha
Mr. M. Anwar Gopalani
Mr. Shariq Jafrani
Mr. Shariq Naseem
Syed Asif Shah

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation

EXECUTIVE STEERING COMMITTEE

1
2
3
4
5
6

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Mr. Badiuddin Akber
Mr. Junaid Shekha
Mr. Shariq Jafrani
Mr. Shariq Naseem
Syed Asif Shah

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

1
2
3
4
5

Mr. Husain Lawai
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Mr. Ayaz Ahmed
Mr. Kamal Afsar
Mr. Mohammed Sohail

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

S. # Name Designation
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Key Figures as on June 30, 2015
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total Number
of Shares in CDS117.73 (In Billions)

Total Market Capitalization
of Shares in CDS4,649.56 (In Billions)

Units of Open-End Funds in CDS184.58 (In Million)

Units of TFCs, Sukuks & Bonds in CDS84.34 (In Million)

Total No. of Securities in IAS50.03 (In Billion)

Total Market Capitalization
of Securities in IAS2234.43  (Rs. in Billion)

Number of Share Registrar
Services Clients109
Number of Funds under Trusteeship224
Asset Under Custody507.58  (Rs. in Billion)

Percentage of Shares in CDS
with reference to Paid up Capital74.57%
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SYSTEM (CDS)
Key Statistics as on June 30, 2015

Transactions handled through CDS
During the Year 2014 - 15

NO. OF TRANSACTIONS

VOLUME (IN BILLIONS)
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0.
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4 6
,1

76

65
8,

57
8

36
2,

47
1

9,
00

2

CDS Elements
Securities (Issuer)

Participants/Account Holders

Eligible Pledgees

819
793
95

Breakup of Securities in CDS 
Ordinary Shares

Preference Shares

Open End Mutual Funds

Bonds

Sukuk & Term Finance Certificates

Total

657
19
38
2

103
819
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Jun 15 Jun 14 Jun 13 Jun 12 Jun 11 Jun 10

Participants/Account Holders

Eligible Pledgees

CDS Live Securities

No. of Shares in CDS (in Billion)

Market Capitalization of Shares in CDS (Rs. in Billion)

Investor Accounts (individual and corporate)

No. of Securities in IAS (in Billion)

Market Capitalization of Securities in IAS (Rs. in Billion)

"Units of TFCs, Sukuks, Bonds & Open-End Funds  in CDS 
(in Million)"

51262

50.03

2234.43

793     

95      

819      

117.73

4649.56

268.92

50,681

43.93

1775.65

706       

97       

811       

110.35

3,852.07

368.98

48,848

41.31

1223.40

666       

97       

801       

107.12

2,706.37

272.48

47,943

38.23

862.30

638       

100       

777       

99.17

1,847.20

263.98

52,986

29.40

748.04

633       

100       

756       

83.83

1,659.01

263.97

52,714

24.49

591.08

629       

102       

741       

78.14

1,403.32

77.99

37,323

26,514

 51,262 

Facts & Figures for IAS
Customers

Activation of IVR/Web

No. of IAS A/C

As on June 30, 2015
Activations

Activation of SMS

Individual
Investor
Accounts

12
.1

9

67
7.

58

 49,811

37
.8

3

1,
55

6.
85

 1,451

Corporate
Investor
Accounts

MARKET VALUE OF SECURITIES (RS. IN BILLION)

NUMBER OF SECURITIES (IN BILLION)

NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS

INVESTOR ACCOUNT SERVICES (IAS)
As on June 30, 2015

SIX YEARS OPERATIONAL DATA
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12.09

Sr. #

 157.55 -  157.55
 34.67

192.21 -
 34.67

 192.21

 117.30 53.53  170.83
 40.08

157.38 53.53
 40.08

 210.91

 12.87 12.87
 15.81

28.68
15.81 

28.68

8.29 8.29
3.02

11.31
3.02

11.31

2.69
13.57

2.69
13.57

16.25 16.25

5.59 5.59
7.96 13.55 7.96 13.55

0.34 0.340.34 0.34

12.09

Category wise Assets / Net Assets of Fund
S. # Category of Fund Open End Fund Closed End Fund Voluntary Pension Scheme Total

1

2

3

4

5

6

9

-

- -

 -

 -

 -
 -

-

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 - -

 -

 -

 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

-

-

-
-

 -

Income & Money Market
Conventional
Islamic
Equity
Conventional
Islamic
Balanced / Asset Allocation
Conventional
Islamic
Capital Protected
Conventional
Islamic
Fund of Funds
Conventional
Islamic
Voluntary Pension Scheme
Conventional
Islamic
Commodity Scheme7
Conventional
Islamic

- -
- - 22.24 22.24

8

-
 -

22.24
22.24

-
-

Rental REIT Scheme
Conventional
Islamic

Discretionary Portfolios (DP)

(Rs. in Billion)

406.17 13.55 495.5075.78Total

507.58Grand Total

Category wise Operational Funds
S. # Category of Fund Open End Fund Closed End Fund Voluntary Pension Scheme Total

1

2

3

4

5

66

33

24

6

9

-
 -

4
 -

-
-

 -
 -

 -
 -

-

4

 -

 -

 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

49
17

28
9 

17
7

4
2

3
6

49
17

24
9

17
7

4
2

3
6

Income & Money Market
Conventional
Islamic
Equity
Conventional
Islamic
Balanced / Asset Allocation
Conventional
Islamic
Capital Protected
Conventional
Islamic
Fund of Funds
Conventional
Islamic

66

37

24

6

9

6

-

2 - -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

2
 -

 -

 -

8
9

17
8
9

-
-

2
 -

Voluntary Pension Scheme
Conventional
Islamic
Commodity Scheme7
Conventional
Islamic

17

2

8

-
 -
1

1
-
-

-
-
1

-
-

Rental REIT Scheme
Conventional
Islamic

1

9 62Discretionary Portfolios 62
Grand Total 224

140 5 17Total 162

TRUSTEE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES 
During the Year 2014 - 15
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1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

116 135 170 165 186 211 239 283 306 358 342 34662

1997

56 327Employees 341

500

400

300

200

100

0
Year 2011

336 381380

2012 2013 20152014

YEAR-WISE EMPLOYEE STRENGTH

Location-wise Employee Strength

Karachi

Lahore

Islamabad

94.49%

3.94%

1.57%

360

15
6

HUMAN RESOURCES
As on June 30, 2015
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rupees in MillionBALANCE SHEET

Share Holders Equity

Surplus on Revaluation of Property & Equipments

Fixed Assets

Other Non - Current Assets

Current Assets

Non - Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

 1,872.549 

 483.986 

 970.468 

 662.672 

 1,180.371 

 183.262 

 273.715 

 1,740.768

492.571

975.425

 86.415

 1,573.192

 186.865

 214.829

 1,697.622 

 502.908 

 992.102 

 140.728 

 1,454.420 

 196.634 

 190.087 

 1,612.921 

 -   

 452.289 

 353.836 

 1,086.751 

 120.726 

 159.229 

 1,583.886 

 -   

 550.882 

 853.363 

 479.490 

 135.163 

 164.686 

 2,131.316 

 475.084 

 970.984 

 117.669 

 2,096.128 

 197.686 

 380.695 

Rupees in MillionOPERATIONAL RESULTS

Total Income

Total Expenses

Profit Before Taxation

Profit After Taxation

 1,232.838 

 755.802 

 477.036 

 329.025 

 1,059.216

 691.870

367.346

244.112

 975.748 

 633.500 

 342.248 

 224.183 

 921.517 

 655.064 

 266.453 

 175.203 

 950.456 

 694.302 

 256.154 

 168.674 

 1,534.060 

 868.720 

 665.340 

 431.740 

Rupees in MillionDIVIDENDS

 195.00 

 -   

 59.27 

Cash

Bonus

Payout Ratio (%age of profit after tax)

 195.00

 -   

 79.88

 150.00 

 150.00 

 66.91 

 150.00 

 -   

 85.61 

 150.00 

 -   

 88.93 

 195.00 

 -   

 45.17 

Rupees in MillionINFORMATION PER ORDINARY SHARE

 7.34 

 5.06 

 28.81 

 10.24 

 6.64 

 32.79 

 5.65

 3.76

26.78

 5.27 

 3.45 

 26.12 

 4.10 

 2.70 

 24.81 

 3.94 

 2.59 

 24.37 

Earnings (pre tax)

Earnings (post tax)

Break-up value

20142015 2013 2012 2011 2010

FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30
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1,800

2,000

2,200

1,400

1,600

1,200

Shareholders Equity Rupees in Million

Years ended 30 June

Shareholders Equity

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

2,131.316 1,872.549 1,740.768 1,697.622 1,612.921 1,583.886

Assets Rupees in Million

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

0

Fixed Assets

Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

2014

970.468
662.672

1,180.371

2012

992.102
140.728

1,454.420

2011

452.289
353.836

1,086.751

2010

550.882
853.363
479.490

2013

975.425
86.415

1,573.192

2015

970.984

117.669

2,096.128

Years ended 30 June

Liabilities Rupees in Million

Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

197.686 183.262 186.865 196.634 120.726 135.163
380.695 273.715 214.829 190.087 159.229 164.686

400

300

350

250

200

150

100

50

0

Years ended 30 June

2013 2012 2011 2010

Total Income -Total Expenses Rupees in Million

Total income

Total expenses

20142015

1,534.060 1,232.838 1,059.216 975.748 921.517 950.456
868.720 755.802 691.870 633.500 655.064 694.302

1500

1200

900

600

300

0

Years ended 30 June

7.34
5.06

10.24

6.64

5.27
3.45

4.10
2.70

3.94
2.59

Earning Per Share (EPS) Rupees

Earnings (pre tax)

Earnings (post tax)

5.65
3.76

20142015 2012 2011 20102013

12

10

8

6

4

2

-

Years ended 30 June Years ended 30 June

30%

20%

10%

0%

Net Profit Margin Percentage

Net profit margin

2015

28.14%

2014

26.69%

2013

23.05%

2011

19.01%

2010

17.75%

2012

22.98%
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Break-up Value Rupees

Break-up value

2015

32.79

2014
28.81

2013
26.78

2012
26.12

2011
24.81

2010
24.37

35

40

30

25

20

15

10
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0

Years ended 30 June Years ended 30 June

700
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500

400

300

200

100

0

Profits Rupees in Million

2015 2013 2012 2011 2010
Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

2014
665.340 477.036 367.346 342.248 266.453 256.154

431.740 329.025 244.112 224.183 175.203 168.674

Years ended 30 June Years ended 30 June

Short Term Solvency Ratio

Current ratio

Quick ratio

2010

2.91

2014

4.31
4.23

2015

5.51

5.43

2013

7.32
7.22

2012

7.65
7.53

2011

6.83
6.72 2.83

0

2

4

6

8

10

Return on Equity

30%

10%

20%

0%

Return on Equity Percentage

2015

22.08%

2014

18.21%

2013 2012 2011 2010

14.20% 13.54% 10.96% 10.72%

1

0

Debt to Equity Ratio

2015

0.09

2014

0.10

2013 2012 2011

0.11 0.12 0.07

2010

0.09Debt equity ratio

Years ended 30 June Years ended 30 June

Return on Assets Percentage

2015

14.40%

2014

12.08%

2013 2012 2011 2010

9.35% 10.01% 9.28% 9.11%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Return on Assets
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SOURCES OF REVENUE EARNEDSOURCES OF REVENUE EARNED

CDS Operations

Investor Account Services

Trustee & Custodial Services

Share Registrar Fee

Other Income

829.62
98.59

403.42
33.70

168.72

SOURCES OF REVENUE EARNEDAPPLICATION OF REVENUE EARNED

Revenue

Expenses other than Dep. & Amort.

Depreciation & Amortisation

Provision for Tax

Net Profit

1,534.06
764.40
104.32
233.60
431.74

0%
201520142013201220112010
74.54%40.27%20.51%11.02%4.85%8.14%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

30%

20%

10%

% CHANGE IN INCOME SINCE 2009
Years ended 30 June

0%
201520142013201220112010
38.16%20.20%10.04%0.75%4.18%10.42%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

% CHANGE IN EXPENSES SINCE 2009
Years ended 30 June
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SIX YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

20142015 2013 2012 2011 2010Profitability Ratios

Profit Before Tax as a %age of Revenue

Net Profit to Sales %

EBITDA Margin to Sales

Debtors Turnover Ratio (times per year)

Operating Leverage Ratio

Return on Equity

Return on Capital Employed

Debtors Collection Period (days)

Expense as a %age of Revenue
Expense Inc. Dep. & Excl. Tax & WWF

43.37%

28.14%

56.37%

9.29

1.54

22.08%

16.16%

39.31

55.74%

34.68%

23.05%

53.48%

 9.33

 0.65

14.20%

10.13%

 39.13

64.61%

35.08%

22.98%

54.84%

 10.98

 4.76

13.56%

10.85%

 33.23

64.16%

28.91%

19.01%

51.21%

 11.08 

 (0.70)

10.96%

10.15%

 32.94 

70.38%

26.95%

17.75%

50.83%

 15.74

 0.20

10.72%

9.93%

 23.19

72.50%

38.69%

26.69%

54.10%

 8.47 

 1.52 

18.21%

13.27%

 43.09

60.52%

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick/Acid Test Ratio

Cash to Current Liabliities

Cash Flow from Operation to Sales

Return on Assets

5.51

5.43

4.87

0.41

14.40%

4.31

4.23

3.48

0.39

12.08%

7.32

7.22

4.24

 0.35

9.35%

7.65

7.53

4.33

 0.39

10.01%

6.83

6.72

0.96

 0.34 

9.28%

2.91

2.83

1.62

 0.46

9.11%

20142015 2013 2012 2011 2010

Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

Investment /  Market Ratios

Earning per Share (before tax)

Earning per Share (after tax)

Dividend Payout Ratio

Cash Dividend per Share

Stock Dividend per Share

Dividend Cover Ratio

Breakup Value per Share without

10.24

6.64

45.17%

3.00

0.00

2.21

32.79

 7.34

 5.06

59.27%

 3.00

 -  

 1.69

 28.81

 5.65

 3.76

79.88%

 3.00 

 -   

 1.25

 26.78

 5.27

 3.45

66.91%

 2.31

 2.31

 1.49 

 26.12

 4.10

 2.70

85.61%

 2.31

 -   

 1.17

 24.81

 3.94

 2.59

88.93%

 2.31

 -   

 1.12

 24.37

20142015 2013 2012 2011 2010

Capital Structure Ratios

Net Assets per Share

Debt to Equity Ratio

40.10

0.09

 34.36

 0.11

 33.85

 0.12

 24.81

 0.07

 24.37

 0.09

 36.25

 0.10

20142015 2013 2012 2011 2010
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Profit & Loss Account

Operating Income

Operating and Adminsitrative Expenses

Operating Prof it

Other Income

Financial Charges

Profit Before Taxation

Taxation

Profit After Taxation

1,086.771

(755.647)

331.124

146.067

(0.155)

100%

70%

30%

13%

0.01%

908.121

(691.762)

216.359

151.095

(0.109)

100%

76%

24%

17%

0.01%

816.627

(633.388)

183.239

159.120

(0.112)

100%

78%

22%

19%

0.01%

770.542

(654.930)

115.612

150.975

(0.134)

100%

85%

15%

20%

0.02%

817.469

 (693.528)

123.941

132.987

 (0.775)

100%

85%

15%

16%

0.09%

1,365.339

(868.578)

496.761

168.721

(0.142)

 665.340 49% 44% 40% 42% 35% 31% 367.346  342.248 266.453 256.154 477.036 

 431.740 32% 30% 27% 27% 23% 21% 244.112  224.183 175.203 168.674 329.025 

 (233.600) 17% 14% 14% 14% 12% 11% (123.234)  (118.065)  (91.250)  (87.479) (148.011)

100%

64%

36%

12%

0.01%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%2,813.511  2,635.032 2,587.250 1,892.876 1,883.735

 3,184.781 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 2,813.511  2,635.032 2,587.250 1,892.876 1,883.735

% % % % % %Statement of Financial Position Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Equity and Liablities 

Total Shareholders Equity

Surplus on Revaluation of Property & Equipment

Total Non - Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Tot al E quity & L iabilities 

Assets

Total Non - Current Assets 

Total Current Assets

Total Assets 

 1,872.549 

 483.986 

 183.262 

 273.715 

 456.977 

 1,633.140 

 1,180.371 

58%

42%

 1,061.840 

 1,573.192 

40%

60%

 1,132.830 

 1,454.420 

44%

56%

 806.125

 1,086.751

43%

57%

 1,404.245

 479.490

75%

25%

67%

17%

6%

10%

16%

2,131.316
 

 475.084
 

 197.686
 

 380.695
 

 578.382 

 1,088.653 

 2,096.128 

34%

66%

67%

15%

6%

12%

18%

 1,740.768 

 492.571 

 186.865 

 214.829 

 401.694 

66%

19%

7%

8%

15%

 1,697.622 

 502.908 

 196.634 

 190.087 

 386.721 

66%

19%

8%

7%

15%

 1,612.921

 - 

 120.726 

 159.229 

 279.955 

85%

-

6%

9%

15%

 1,583.886

 - 

 135.163 

 164.686 

 299.849 

84%

-

7%

9%

16%

3,184.781 

% % % % % %Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

169% 149% 140% 137% 100% 100%2,813.511 2,635.032 2,587.250 1,892.876 1,883.735

3,184.781 169% 149% 140% 137% 100% 100%2,813.511 2,635.032 2,587.250 1,892.876 1,883.735

% % % % % %Statement of Financial Position Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Equity and Liablities 

Total Shareholders Equity

Surplus on Revaluation of Property & Equipment

Total Non - Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Tot al E quity & L iabilities 

Assets

Total Non - Current Assets 

Total Current Assets

Total Assets 

1,872.549

483.986

183.262

273.715

456.977

1,633.140

1,180.371

116%

246%

1,061.840

1,573.192

76%

328%

1,132.830

1,454.420

81%

303%

806.125

1,086.751

57%

227%

1,404.245

479.490

100%

100%

118%

  

136%

166%

152%

2,131.316

475.084

197.686

380.695

578.382

1,088.653

2,096.128

78%

437%

135%

146%

231%

193%

 1,740.768 

 492.571 

186.865

214.829

401.694

110%

 

138%

130%

134%

1,697.622

 502.908

196.634

190.087

386.721

107%

   

145%

115%

129%

 1,612.921

 

 120.726

159.229

279.955

102%

89%

97%

93%

 1,583.886

 

 135.163

164.686

299.849

100%

100%

100%

100%

3,184.781

Cumulative Basis

Profit & Loss Account

Operating Income

Operating and Adminsitrative Expenses

Operating Prof it

Other Income

Financial Charges

Profit Before Taxation

Taxation

Profit After Taxation

 1,086.771

 (755.647)

 331.124 

 146.067 

 (0.155)

133%

109%

267%

110%

20%

 908.121

 (691.762)

 216.359 

 151.095 

 (0.109)

111%

100%

175%

114%

14%

 816.627 

(633.388)

183.239

 159.120 

 (0.112)

100%

91%

148%

120%

14%

 770.542 

 (654.930) 

 115.612 

 150.975 

 (0.134) 

94%

94%

93%

114%

17%

 817.469 

 (693.528)

 123.941 

 132.987 

 (0.775) 

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

 1,365.339

 (869)

 496.761

 168.721

 (0.142)

 665.340 260% 186% 143% 134% 104% 100% 367.346  342.248  266.453  256.154 477.036

 431.740 256% 195% 145% 133% 104% 100% 244.112  224.183  175.203 168.674 329.025

 (233.600) 267% 169% 141% 135% 104% 100% (123.234)  (118.065)  (91.250)  (87.479) (148.011)

167%

125%

401%

127%

18%

% % % % % %Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

----- ---
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

113% 107% 102% 137% 100% 104%2,813.511 2,635.032 2,587.250 1,892.876 1,883.735

3,184.781 113% 107% 102% 137% 100% 104%2,813.511 2,635.032 2,587.250 1,892.876 1,883.735

% % % % % %Statement of Financial Position Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million

Equity and Liablities 

Total Shareholders Equity

Surplus on Revaluation of Property & Equipment

Total Non - Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Tot al E quity & L iabilities 

Assets

Total Non - Current Assets 

Total Current Assets

Total Assets 

 1,872.549

 483.986

 183.262

273.715

456.977

1,633.140

1,180.371

154%

75%

1,061.840

1,573.192

94%

108%

1,132.830

1,454.420

141%

134%

806.125

1,086.751

57%

227%

1,404.245

479.490

119%

75%

108%

98%

98%

127%

114%

 2,131.316

 475.084

197.690

380.695

578.382

1,088.653

2,096.128

67%

178%

114%

98%

108%

139%

127%

 1,740.768

492.571

186.865

214.829

401.694

103%

98%

95%

113%

104%

1,697.622

 502.908

196.634

190.087

386.721

105%

163%

119%

138%

 1,612.921

 

 120.726 

159.229

279.955

102%

89%

97%

93%

 1,583.886

 

 135.163

164.686

299.849

101%

119%

116%

118%

3,184.781

Year on Year Basis 2015 VS 2014 2014 VS 2013 2013 VS 2012 2012 VS 2011 2011 VS 2010 2010 VS 2009

Profit & Loss Account

Operating Income

Operating and Adminsitrative Expenses

Operating Prof it

Other Income

Financial Charges

Profit Before Taxation

Taxation

Profit After Taxation

 1,086.771

 (755.647)

 331.124

 146.067

 (0.155)

120%

109%

153%

97%

143%

 908.121 

 (691.762)

 216.359 

 151.095 

 (0.109) 

111%

109%

118%

95%

97%

 816.627

(633.388)

183.239

 159.120

 (0.112)

106%

97%

159%

105%

83%

 770.542 

 (654.930)

 115.612 

 150.975 

 (0.134) 

94%

94%

93%

114%

17%

 817.469 

 (693.528)

 123.941 

 132.987 

 (0.775) 

112%

111%

120%

89%

47%

 1,365.339

 (869)

 496.761

 168.721

 (0.142)

 665.340 139% 130% 107% 128% 104% 102% 367.346  342.248  266.453  256.154 477.036

 431.740 131% 135% 109% 128% 104% 96% 244.112  224.183  175.203 168.674 329.025 

 (233.600) 158% 120% 104% 129% 104% 118% (123.234)  (118.065)  (91.250)  (87.479) (148.011)

126%

115%

150%

116%

92%

% % % % % %Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million Rs. in million

2015 VS 2014 2014 VS 2013 2013 VS 2012 2012 VS 2011 2011 VS 2010 2010 VS 2009
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The Directors of Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are 
pleased to present their report together 
with the Company’s annual audited 
unconsolidated financial statement for the 
year ended June 30, 2015.
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
The year 2014-15 can be termed as year of recovery for the 
Pakistan’s economy as despite challenges both at domestic and 
external front, we managed to improve upon our economic 
indicators.

At domestic front from political instability to the launch of 
Zarb-e-Azb and then Karachi Operations have made the security 
environment much better and improved confidence of people of 
Pakistan and elsewhere.

In the international arena, persistent decline in crude oil prices 
have contributed to a significant reduction in CPI inflation. 
Increased remittances by overseas Pakistanis and the reduced 
oil import bill has lowered the current account deficit and 
boosted foreign currency reserves. Funds were also injected 
through the disbursement of loan tranches under IMF’s 
Extended Fund Facility (EFF), the privatization of United Bank 
Limited (UBL), Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL), Allied Bank 
Limited (ABL) and Habib Bank Limited (HBL) through Book 
Building, Coalition Support Fund (CSF), and issuance of 
Government Ijara Sukuk Bonds in the international market. The 
China-Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) project is also 
expected to further provide economic benefits for the people of 
Pakistan. 

Macro-economic statistics corroborate the positive direction of 
the economy. Year on Year inflation of 4.8% has been the lowest 
in over a decade, and current account deficit was reduced by 
more than 50% from last year to US$ 1.4bn. Foreign exchange 
reserves have swelled to US$ 17.739bn and the exchange rate 
has remained stable against the dollar. GDP growth has 
accelerated from 4.1% in the previous year to 4.24% in the 
ongoing year. This continued improvement has been noted by 
international credit rating agencies with Standard & Poor and 
Moody upgrading Pakistan’s outlook from stable to positive.

CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW
Pakistan’s capital market is continuing its impressive 
performance from the previous year. The KSE 100 index has 
again outperformed most of its regional peers by closing the 
fiscal year at 34,398 points as against 29,652 points on 30 
June 2014, posting a growth of more than 15%.

In the MSCI Asian Frontier Markets index Pakistan is ranked 
number one, ahead of Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and Vietnam. 
Interest has also been shown by foreign investors in Pakistan’s 
equity market as evidenced by their holding of 33pc of the free 
float (worth US$ 6.1bn). Overall foreign investors have 
remained net buyers contributing to expanding Pakistan’s 
foreign exchange reserves. 

Privatization Commission has successfully concluded various 
capital market transactions in the current fiscal year; UBL, PPL, 
ABL and HBL offerings generated healthy proceeds.   

In the current fiscal year, SECP has focused on increased 
investor awareness and protection. A number of legal,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
We are pleased to announce that CDC had another successful 
year of operations scoring all time highest operating income 
and profitability. In 2014-15, the Company has achieved its 
highest ever after-tax-profit of PKR 432 Million for the year 
registering an increase of more than 31.22% over last year. 
The net profit margin of the Company improved to 28.14% 
(2014: 26.69%) and registering an EPS of PKR 6.64 (2014: 
PKR 5.06).

The improvement in performance resulted due to significant 
increase in revenues, smooth operations, resulting in healthy 
cash generation. This was augmented by concentrated 
diversification and initiatives to expand nationwide outreach, 
efficient and optimum utilization of funds for investment.

Total Revenue increased to PKR 1,534 Million as compared to 
PKR 1,233 Million last year - an increase of 24.43%.

structural and fiscal reforms have been introduced to 
strengthen risk management, increase transparency and 
improve governance of the capital market; including Asset 
under Custody Regime, Book Building Regulations, Investor 
Education Plan, Global Inspections Regime, Sukuk Regulations 
and other initiatives.
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Operating income

Less: Operating and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other operating income

Less: Other operating expenses

Less: Financial charges

Profit before income tax

Less: Income tax expense 

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rs.)

(Rupees in ‘000)

       908,121

674,651

       233,470

151,095

17,111

109

       367,346

123,234

       244,112

3.76

June 30, 2014June 30, 2015 June 30, 2013

     1,365,339

837,590

527,749

168,721

30,988

142

665,340

233,600

       431,740

                    6.64

1,086,771

      733,431

       353,340

        146,067

        22,217

             155

        477,036

      148,011

329,025

5.06

 

Element Training Program
  

 

 

 

Revamping of Corporate
Website

Introduction of Asset under
Custody Regime

 Investor Awareness
Sessions - Capital Market

Obtaining Status of Gold Training
Employer – ICAEW & ACCA

Extending Outreach of CDC to remote
areas through Strategic Alliance

Online Transaction Service

Mandatory SMS/eAlert for
Sub - Accounts

Integration of Information
Security & BCP

 

 

Start of Retail Client Services for
Government Securities

Introduction of Direct Settlement Services
(DSS) for Investor Accountholders

Introduction of Universal Teller
concept – One Window Solution for Customer

2015 

2014

ACHIEVEMENTS
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PROJECTS UNDER IMPLEMENTATION
• A new regime will be introduced for Trading Rights
 Entitlement Certificate (TREC) Holders Participant whereby 
 limiting the custody of securities a TREC older can 
 maintain in CDS. System Development has been one with 
 adequate system support to monitor compliance and take 
 action where the TREC Holder Participant breaches the 
 defined threshold. The relevant Regulations have also 
 been approved by SECP. Asset under Custody regime will
 be rolled out after the approval on the implementation
 plan by the SECP. 

• With the successful launch of Centralized Information
 Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII), CDC is
 aspiring for the next stage in which sectors other than Life
 Insurance will be inducted into the system. The project
 will ultimately culminate in the development of the first
 ever Insurance Repository of Pakistan which will be a
 matter of great pride for CDC and will further automate 
 the Insurance Industry processes. 

• CDC as part of the initiative of SECP to increase the
 outreach of capital market has taken a lead in establishing
 a capital market hub in Abbottabad which is being formed
 in collaboration with other Capital and Financial Market 
 entities. A Committee under the leadership of CEO CDC –
 Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura was formed by the SECP 
 who have finalized the modalities for setting-up of the Hub 
 in Abbottabad.   Success of such endeavor will open door
 for more similar initiatives which will provide investment
 opportunities to people residing in smaller cities and thus
 contribute to the expansion of the investor base.

• CDC’s Business Continuity Program which was certified
 against BS 25999 standard in 2012 shall be certified with 
 the ISO 22301 standard. Stage 1 Audit for this purpose 
 has been successfully cleared by the auditors and Stage 2 
 Audit is expected in the second quarter of 2015-16. Just 
 like for BS 25999, CDC shall be first and only organization
 in Pakistan to achieve this global standard providing a 
 comprehensive assurance to its stake holders about CDC’s 
 readiness to meet a disaster situation in a well-structured 
 and independently audited manner.

• International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 
 3402 has been issued by the International Auditing and 
 Assurance Standards Board which is part of the 
 International Federation of Accountants. It was developed 
 to provide an international assurance standard for 
 allowing public accountants to issue a report for use by 
 user organizations and their auditors on the controls at a 
 service organization that are likely to impact or be a part of 
 the user organization’s system of internal control over 
 financial reporting. CDC has decided to seek consultancy 
 from one of the Big4 to assess the feasibility of the 
 adoption of this standard.

Management has the objective to transform the culture of the 
Company into highly customer driven, empowered and cross 
functionality focused company in order to maximize the return 
for stakeholders. Management has the belief that quality may 
not be achieved without implementation of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI’s) in all the critical, contemporary areas of 
performance. CDC’s management continued its strategy to 
ensure sustainability of its operations by providing safe and 
secure services and at the same time contributing to capital 
market development. Further, through diversification it has 
also ensured that its financial results are not affected by 
capital market volatility. The results, financial and 
non-financial, are the reflection of achievement of 
management’s objective which are strategically placed to 
increase the wealth of stakeholder. The said results are 
properly evaluated against the respective strategic objectives 
to confirm the achievement. There is no material change in 
Company’s objective and strategies from the previous year.

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
STRATEGIES

• ITMinds has been successfully providing Back Office 
 Accounting Services to Mutual fund industry of Pakistan. In 
 March 2015, it successfully signed an agreement with 
 Atlas Asset Management Company which is one of the 
 leading Asset Management Companies of Pakistan, with 
 the total Net Assets of Rs. 19 billion. The signing of this 
 agreement with Atlas is a laudable step towards 
 aggressively expanding the Back Office Accounting 
 Services business.

Our resources mainly consist of human resource, financial 
resource, and technological resource. CDC assorted and hired 
team of professionals with expertise in latest technologies who 
proficiently design the ways for improving and upgrading our 
operations, networking and control systems. We have developed 
a dedicated team to analyze the human resource right from 
selection till retirement. We believe in adding value to our human 
resource by extensive trainings and development programs.

Company’s Significant Resources

During the year an amount of Rs. 559 million was generated 
from operating activities of the Company.

At the year end, the Company had a liquid fund position 
comprising of cash/bank balances and short term investments 
amounting to Rs. 1,852 million after investments in capital 
projects and dividend payments.

To ensure sufficient availability of funds at all times whilst 
generating optimum returns through placement of surplus 
liquidity in various available investment avenues, the Company 
has developed and implemented a formal cash flow monitoring 
mechanism whereby cash inflows and outflows are projected 
and monitored on regular basis.

Liquidity Management
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The Company’s strategy is to maintain a strong capital base 
which is built on reserves so as to maintain investors, creditors 
and market confidence and to sustain future development of 
the business. This has resulted in Company’s ability to operate 
in an efficient manner to enable it to provide healthy returns 
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
There was no change in the Company’s approach to capital 
management during the year and the Company is not subject 
to any externally imposed requirement.

Capital Management

CDC continuously strives to align its HR polices and strategies 
with the best corporate practices. Accordingly, several 
initiatives were taken during this year including organizational 
structure review, job identification / description exercise and 
function wise “competency mapping”.

Evolution of digital forces has transformed the way we live and 
work. CDC has built a digital and vivacious workplace which 
goes beyond constraints of time and distance. This reimagined 
workplace has enabled employees to interact and collaborate 
better with each other.

The Company continues to grow its scale and footprint with a 
diverse talent base of more than 380 employees. The Company 
is committed to providing equal opportunity to all employees 
without any discrimination on the basis of religion, race, gender, 
age etc. From gender diversity point of view, the number of 
female employees has increased over the year.

Efficient systems, processes and continuous investments in 
technology helps the Company manage this scale and 
complexity of a large, distributed and diverse workforce.

Human Resource Development

CDC is the only depository and continues to maintain more 
than 95% market share of Trustee business. R/TA services 
have shown excellent growth, currently providing services to 
109 clients and makes up to achieves a milestone as one of 
the top three R/TA service provider in the country. A tabular 
presentation reflecting revenue growth over the years of its 
main segments is as follows:

Market Share

2012CAGR 2015

Cumulative aggregate growth rate of revenue (CAGR) ‘Rs. in million’

Revenues

CDS Operations - net 

Trustee & Custodial fee 

Share Registrar

15.60%

16.07%

39.41%

934

403

34

2014

738

326

27

2013

577

311

20

515

281

13

2011

527

222

9

The securities in the CDS increased to 117.73 billion which in 
terms of value contribute Rs. 4.6 trillion, the highest level in 
CDC’s history as depicted in the graph.

Growth In CDS Operations

As evident from the above chart, CDC segments recorded 
remarkable growth in operational terms which translated into 
increased revenue in these segments. Following are the 
highlights of various segments:

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

84
99

107 110 118

1 2 3 4 5

Share in CDS (in billion)

Other Income 11%

Trustee and
Custodial Services

26%

Depository
Services

61%

Share Registrar
Services 2%

REVENUE MIX
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Your Directors are pleased to recommend a cash dividend of 
Rs. 3.25 per share (2014: cash dividend Rs. 3 per share) of Rs. 
10 each i.e. 32.5% of the paid-up capital in respect of year 
ended June 30, 2015 in their meeting held on September 03, 
2015. The financial statements do not reflect this proposed 
dividend which will be accounted for in the period in which it is 
approved by shareholders.

APPROPRIATIONS

Key operating and financial data of previous years has been 
summarized on page 34 and 40 respectively.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

An amount of PKR 233.6 Million (2014: PKR 148.01 Million) 
was contributed during the year in respect of Income tax. As a 
responsible citizen of our country your Company contributed 
15.23% (2014: 12.01%) of total revenue back to the Economy.

Contribution to National Exchequer and Economy

The value of the investment of the provident fund is PKR 
49.11 Million. 

Statement as to the Value of Investment of Provident Fund

A number of new initiatives are under consideration which 
includes development of eIPO, an internet application which 
will allow investors to subscribe in Public Offerings without any 
physical form submission. Further prospering the vision of 
depository to bring efficiency and transparency in capital 
market the Direct Settlement Services (“DSS”) is expected to be

Future Prospects

Trustee and Custodial Services achieved yet another milestone 
of aggregated net assets of above Rs. 507 billion under custody 
with total funds under trusteeship reaching 224. Trusteeship 
fee provides visible support to the overall revenues of the 
Company as its contribution is 26 percent in current year 
revenue of Rs. 1,534 million.  With the number of new funds 
already in pipelines to which the Company has already 
consented to act as trustee, it is likely that revenue from this 
business function will further increase.

Trustee and Custodial Services

As evident from the revenue growth of around 7% in 
comparison with 2014, Share Registrar services now cater to 
109 clients with some prominent names like Habib Bank 
Limited – Retail TFC, K-Electric Sukuks, Al-Shaheer 
Corporation Limited etc. making its position among top R/TA 
service providers.

Share Registrar Services

COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS
We support a broad range of initiatives in the area of health, 
education, and environment protection as we believe they 
provide the fundamental building blocks for the development 
of society.  

The right to learn:
CDC has recently initiated building a school in its name in 
collaboration with The Citizen’s Foundation (TCF) at Tapo 
Azeem Shah, Mirpur Khas, Sindh, targeting area which is 
neglected. Aim is to make significant infrastructural 
investment and arrange for qualified teachers. 

Greener tomorrow:
Concern for the environment is no longer a fad or “a good thing 
to do”. It is critical need of the day. We are conscious of our 
responsibility to the environment and are serious in our 
commitment for its preservation. CDC replaced fluorescent 
lamps with LED lights, electrical chillers with gas fired 
operation and contributed to minimize pollution by making 
“Smoke Free” premises for healthy office environment.

Total number of funds under trusteeship

180

2014

143

2012

121

2011 2013

148

224

2015

42
50

82

102
109

2011 20142012 2013 2015

Total number of R/TA customers

54



launched, through which Investors can avail Clearing & Settlement 
services directly through CDC. Also CDC has been appointed as 
Trustee for the Rental REIT’s to an RMC and is in process of 
finalizing the constitutive documents as well as working 
modalities.

CDC is confident on its ability to grow the business and capitalize 
on significant opportunities, leading to value creation for its 
stakeholders. CDC believes that the principals of CDC’s success 
will continue to provide a firm foundation for future endeavors.

The Board and management are committed to ensure that the 
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance are fully 
met. The Company has voluntarily adopted good Corporate 
Governance practices with an aim to enhance the accuracy, 
comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and 
non-financial information. Pursuant to and in compliance with 
clause (xvi) of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors 
are pleased to report that:

a) The financial statements presented by the management of 
 the Company gives a fair account of the state of affairs, the 
 results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have been 
 maintained as required under the Companies Ordinance, 
 1984.

c) Accounting policies have been consistently applied in the 
 preparation of the financial statements and changes 
 wherever made have been disclosed and accounting
 estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) The system of internal control, which is in place, is sound in 
 design and has been effectively implemented and 
 monitored.

e) Financial Reporting Framework as applicable in Pakistan 
 has been followed in preparation of financial statements.

f) There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
 as a going concern.

g) There has been no material departure from the best 
 practices of corporate governance.

h) The Pattern of Shareholding is given on page 140.

i) The key operating and financial data of the past six years is 
 given on page 36 and 46 respectively.

j) Note 32 of Financial Statements on staff retirement 
 benefits provide information on the value of gratuity fund 
 and were recorded as liability.

k) Note 25.4 and 32 of Financial Statements provide 
 information regarding the value of investment of provident 
 fund and gratuity fund.

Code of Corporate Governance

CHANGES IN THE HUMAN RESOURCE
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Pursuant to election of Directors, the Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) was reconstituted on 
January 26, 2015. Mr. Omar Khalil Malik was appointed as 
member of the reconstituted HR&RC in place of Mian Ayyaz 
Afzal. Mr. Shahid Ghaffar is a new inclusion in the Committee. 
The statutory composition of the Committee remained intact 
with this change.

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee ensures 
that the human resource strategy is aligned to the overall 
corporate strategy and a remuneration policy that creates 
value for the shareholders. The Committee composition have 
also been included in this report.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS
AND ATTENDANCE
CDC’s board comprises of individuals representing 
shareholding institutions as well as one director nominated by 
the SECP. All the Directors of the Company meet the eligibility 
criteria laid down under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the 
Code of Corporate Governance and the Fit & Proper Criteria 
devised by the SECP and incorporated in the Company’s 
Articles of Association.

The tenure of office of a director is three years, upon expiry, 
after which elections are held to appoint a new Board in 
accordance with the statute. Directors representing respective 

Changes in the Board
During the year under review, the Directors completed their 
tenure in office. Election of directors was held on December 
23, 2014 and all the existing directors were re-elected for the 
next term of three years except Mr. Khalid Rahman and Mian 
Ayyaz Afzal. Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem and Mr. Shahid 
Ghaffar were the new elected directors.

Ms. Fatima Anis, nominee director of SECP tendered her 
resignation from the Board and in her place the SECP has 
nominated Syed Majid Ali as its nominee Director on the Board 
of Directors of the Company effective from the date of Election 
of directors.

Changes in the Audit Committee
Pursuant to election of Directors, the Audit Committee was 
reconstituted on January 26, 2015. The statutory composition 
of the Committee remained intact with this change.

The Audit Committee of the Board continued to perform its 
duties and responsibilities effectively as per its approved 
terms of reference. The Committee’s composition is part of the 
annual report.
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Two directors have completed formal directors training 
certificate during the year from Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance and the Institute of Cost & Management 
Accountants of Pakistan respectively.

Directors Training

The Pattern of shareholding and categories of shareholders of 
the Company as at June 30, 2015 are given on page 140.

Pattern of Shareholding

As per the Corporate Governance guidelines, the Company has 
prepared a Code of Conduct and communicated throughout the 
ompany apart from placing it on the Company’s website.

Code of Conduct

Board of directors periodically review CDC’s business 
continuity & disaster recovery (BC/DR) plan to ensure that 
critical business functions will be available to customers, 
regulators, and other entities that have access to those 
functions even under extraordinary circumstances. BC/DR 
plan mainly include daily tasks such as customer 
correspondence, trading activities, system backups and help 
desk operations. CDC is the only company in Pakistan 
certified under British Standard BS 25999 as it fully 
appreciates the criticalness of its role in the overall capital 
and financial market and therefore gives great importance to 
ensuring that its system and services are resilient.

Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery Plan

Management believes materiality as a key Component of an 
effective communication with stakeholders. The management 
has adopted materiality approach which is based on a 
combination of stakeholder engagement, under-standing of 
environmental limits and strategic alignment. It has made the 
process, assumptions and evidence base for identifying 
material issues for more transparent, credible and amenable 
disclosures to have more transparency on risk and 
opportunities.

Materiality Approach

shareholding institutions have no direct interest in the 
Company’s business. 

The Board of Directors remained actively involved during the 
year in performing its duties and functions as specified under 
the Code of Corporate Governance. CDC has availed the 
services of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) 
for the evaluation of board’s own performance and 
contribution toward effectiveness.

During the year under review, eight meetings of the Board of 
Directors, four meetings of the Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee and seven meetings of the Audit 
Committee were held. The attendance of the Board members 
in Board and Committee meetings was as shown below:

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some 
of the meetings.

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Ms. Fatima Anis

Mr. Kamal Afsar

Mr. Khalid Rahman

Syed Majid Ali

6/7

3/3

1/3

3/4

7/7

4/4

2/3

Audit Committee

Mr. Husain Lawai

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Mian Ayyaz Afzal

Ms. Fatima Anis 

Mr. Kamal Afsar

Mr. Khalid Rahman

Mr. Mohammad Sohail

Mr. Muhammad Aslam 

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi

Mr. Omar Khalil Malik

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Syed Majid Ali

7/8

8/8

8/8

4/5

4/7

3/3

3/3

8/8

3/3

8/8

7/8

4/8

8/8

5/5

5/5

Board Meetings

Mr. Husain Lawai

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mian Ayyaz Afzal

Mr. Mohammed Sohail

Mr. Omar Khalil Malik

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

3/4

4/4

1/2

2/4

4/4

2/2

Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee Meetings
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Karachi, Thursday, September 03, 2015

Chief Executive Officer
Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
approved accounting standards requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses as defined in note 3 of 
Financial Statements.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company have occurred between the end of 
the financial year of the company and the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Internal Audit function is effectively operating within the 
framework set out in Code of Corporate Governance and the 
charter defined by the Audit Committee of the Board. The 
Board relies on the inputs and recommendations of the 
Internal Audit function through its Audit Committee on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in the 
organization and take appropriate measures.

INTERNAL AUDIT

M/s.  Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, 
retiring auditors of the Company, being eligible offer 
themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee and the 
Board have recommended their re-appointment by the 
shareholders at the 23rd Annual General Meeting, as auditors 
of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2016.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board places on record its gratitude for the hard work and 
dedication of every employee of the Company. The Board also 
appreciates and acknowledges the valuable assistance, 
guidance and cooperation of all stakeholders, Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan, 
Stock Exchanges, CDS Elements and all others whose efforts 
and contributions strengthened the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

-Sd-
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THE SILK ROUTE
BEYOND

EN ROUTE TO PROGRESS
IN A DIVERSITY OF WAYS
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Trade has been characterized as one of the most primitive ways of humanity’s survival. 
The moment humans gained consciousness, they explored numerous ways to survive and 
grow; among which, the most intelligent and peaceful approach was trading. They not 
only started trading goods but also traded skills and ideas which helped expand the 
collective-consciousness of humanity. Besides this, trade offered multiple benefits 
including inter-cultural collaboration, world peace and economic development.

There are certain prerequisites to trade, the most fundamental of them is the presence of 
necessary infrastructure which includes connecting roads and availability of 
transportation. Ancient Silk Route: routes across both land and seas provided the world 
with an enormous infrastructure which gave a new meaning to trade.

Starting from Chang'an (China), the arteries of these routes extended to Alexandria 
(Greece), ultimately connecting the Asian continent to the West. Besides merchandise 
and precious commodities, this infrastructure influenced the exchange of intellect and 
culture. Science, arts and crafts, as well as inventions and technologies were exchanged 
among societies along the lengths of these routes and ultimately influenced human 
evolution. The silk routes signified the concept of international relationship, in fact, this 
was one of humanity’s foremost steps towards globalization.

In the modern era, market infrastructure institutions are critical to the facilitation of 
trade. They serve the same purpose as ancient Silk Routes. These institutions include 
Banks, Depositories, Insurance companies etc.

Being a Capital Market infrastructure institution, Central Depository Company 
shares the same roles associated with the Silk Route in great resemblance. CDC was 
established to bring efficiency in the overall trade cycle by overcoming the associated 
complexities. We connected all entities of Capital Market with a purpose to promote 
trade by providing safest market dimensions for investors.

We have always valued diversity and collaborations. Our services have changed the 
overall landscape of Capital Market by introducing various technology based solutions. 
Due to our efforts, the international attention to the Pakistan Capital Market has 
grown manifolds in the past two decades.
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Removing Road Blocks

The spirit of revolution is infused in CDC’s business ideology. This spirit guides us to come up with 
innovative technology based solutions to cater to the needs of Pakistan Capital Market. It all began in 
mid-1990s: founding decade of the Central Depository Company (CDC). CDC was established with an 
aim to introduce an automated system to counter the risks and problems of manual processing environment. 
Before CDC’s inception, the shares and securities were traded physically which posed a threat to Investor’s 
safety with regards to forgery and theft. Further, the settlement mechanisms were becoming obsolete in 
comparison to the increasing volume of traded securities. The manual process was cumbersome and 
inefficient.

We presented a solution to all these problems in the form of a fully automated Central Depository System 
(CDS). CDS helped change the course of the Pakistan Capital Market by providing transparency and 
efficiency to stakeholders.

CDC’s intervention brought in the element of efficiency in the Capital Market Operations by automating the 
entire trading process which also resulted in reduced rate of human errors and increase in trading volumes. 
The volumes of trade we experience today would not have been achieved with manual processing. CDS 
offered an electronic book-entry system backed by a state-of-the-art technology infrastructure which 
significantly reduced the time and efforts associated with transaction and settlement of securities.
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Paving the Way

Our understanding of the Capital Market has always helped us perceive the problems of stakeholders and 
counter them with innovative solutions. After the launch of CDS, we realized that the Investor community 
needed a dependable custodian to safeguard their investments. For those who wanted to be in control of their 
investment portfolio, the solution was presented in the form of Investor Account Services (IAS) in 1999. 
This is a unique concept which caters to the inherent need of Investors’ safety and is being offered by very 
few nations around the world. IAS provided the investor community direct access to their investment 
portfolio. Any activity in the investor account is initiated on the instruction of account holder(s). As of this 
day, the approximate number of account holders of IAS over 50,000. We provided investors with the control 
they deserve.

Hoping to incorporate international best practices with regards to Capital Market infrastructure, CDC took a 
major leap and introduced National Clearing and Settlement System (NCSS) in 2004. NCSS facilitated 
cross exchange settlement of securities by uniting the independent clearing houses of all three stock 
exchanges of Pakistan under one roof which enhanced the precision and security aspects of the entire 
settlement process. NCSS was operated by CDC till 2005, when it was handed over to an independent management.

Expanding Horizons

A trade route is usually established by one single route connecting two entities but with time comes 
evolution. These routes then grow and experience evolution when multiple arteries of routes are added to 
their domain thus giving us a lesson in diversity.
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Similar to this concept, CDC has seen an ever increasing growth by creating a diversified business portfolio. 
Our business policies have enabled us to expand into new markets and grow our customer base. The 
importance of diversification expanding to multiple dimensions: distribution of risks among variety of 
services, extensive risk management and stability measures. CDC’s objective to diversify was not all 
dependent upon the inherent benefits that diversification offers to a company, in fact, our customer focused 
management policies drove us to identify gaps and problems faced by market participants and enabled us to 
provide solutions by expanding our services portfolio. The reason that each of our business segment has 
gained market leadership is the proof of trust that our customers share with us.

Established in year 2002, CDC’s Trustee and Custodial Services (T&C) is the most sought after T&C 
Service in Pakistan, which is evident from our massive 95% market share of the Mutual Fund Industry. This 
was made possible by our continuous investment of time and effort to enhance the end user experience. CDC 
launched a comprehensive Fund Management System (FMS) which provides an electronic system of 
Straight Through Processing (STP) for settlement of transactions. This system enhances the efficiency and 
speed of the settlement process by bringing CDC’s trustee units, Asset Management Companies and settling 
Banks on the same page.

In line with the tradition of continuous improvement, CDC introduced Share Registrar Services in 2008. 
This service offered a full-fledged solution to the Issuers by taking over maintenance, registration, 
verification of shares and direct customer dealing on behalf of Issuer companies. Share Registrar Services 
currently maintains a very lucrative portfolio which exceeds more than 100 companies, who entrusted CDC 
with their shareholder’s data. These companies include large and established organizations from the 
banking, cement, steel, financial, insurance, government, oil & gas, energy, pharmaceutical, aviation and 
textile sectors.
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Going the Extra Mile

CDC’s legacy extends over 18 years of excellence. These 18 years have gained us an unparalleled reputation 
of going extra miles and bringing something unique to the market every few years. CDC is known for 
revamping the Pakistan Capital Market by introducing automation in processes and reducing the risks 
associated with manual processing.

In our quest to improve the overall economy, we began with developing solutions for the Insurance Sector. 
Due to the fact that all insurance companies work in isolation, they do not have cross access to a lot of 
information, which exposes the insurance companies to a heightened risk. Since 2013, CDC devoted its 
resources to identify further gaps in the Insurance sector and come up with comprehensive solutions for 
them.

In 2011, we realized that CDC had excellent resources to provide state-of-the-art comprehensive Enterprise 
Software Solutions to organizations across Pakistan. Hence, CDC launched  v, a wholly owned subsidiary 
which has committed itself to providing unmatched IT solutions.

Recently, ITMinds Limited introduced Back Office Accounting Services (BOAS). Currently, BOAS caters 
Asset Management companies across Pakistan by providing them with excellent Fund Accounting services. 
This outsourced function helps AMCs to focus on their core business activities. BOAS solution package 
includes Investment Settlement, Unit Management, NAV Calculation, Financial Reporting, IT Management 
and Business Continuity Planning. BOAS solutions are not just limited to the mutual funds industry, indeed, 
ITMinds Limited is offering these solutions to all other industries in our economy which would allow them 
to focus on their core businesses.
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Building Fences

Expansion of any business calls for efficient Risk Management procedures. Every time we diversify our 
service portfolio, we face multiple inherent risks yet we counter them by updating our Risk Management 
policies to ensure risk mitigation for all our stakeholders.  We have recently introduced a security protocol 
that poses limits on Assets Under Custody held by TREC participants. The objective of this Regime is to 
apply a mechanism whereby prescribing a limit to the extent of which a Trading Right Entitlement 
Certificate (TREC) Holder Participant may have custody of securities under their control.

Being at the Forefront of Pakistan Capital Market, we use a highly advance information security system. In 
2009, our competent state-of-the-art Information Management System was awarded ISO 27001:2005 
certification by the United Kingdom Accreditation Service. ISO 27001:2005 is a globally accepted 
Information Security Management System (ISMS) and adopted by all integrated organizations. Thriving for 
continuous improvement, we are in the process of acquiring ISO 27001:2013 certification.

The first product in line with this objective is known as the Centralized Information Sharing Solution for 
Insurance Industry (CISSII). It is a central database through which all Insurance companies can access 
pertinent information, ultimately, reducing the associated risks and increasing efficiency. In April 2014, after 
deliberations with stakeholders of the Pakistan Insurance Industry, all leading life insurance companies 
joined this platform.

The launch of CISSII is the first phase in the implementation of a fully operational Insurance Repository. 
CDC’s aim is to achieve complete dematerialization of historical insurance records; thus ensuring high 
levels of transparency and precision.

CDC Access was launched as a unique package of 5 services (Web, IVR, SMS, eAlert and eStatement) 
which allows Investor Account Holders and Sub-Account Holders to access their account information in real 
time. Upon analyzing our customers’ needs, we added 2 exemplary services to already popular CDC Access 
portfolio.

Online Transactions Service enables the Investor Account Holders to initiate Portfolio Transfers directly 
through the 24/7 CDC access Online Web Portal without the hassle of paperwork and manual effort.

Direct Settlement Service (DSS) was launched in April 2015 to provide paramount investor protection. For 
subscribers, CDC will take over the responsibility of settling investor trades (cash and securities) through 
IAS Account.

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REIT): February 2015 marked yet another monumental event when CDC 
became the trustee of Pakistan first ever rental REIT scheme. This has been a major development in already 
thriving real estate market of Pakistan.

eDividend facility was introduced by CDC as yet another innovative concept in Share Registrar Services to 
facilitate the shareholders. eDividend facility enables issuers to electronically credit dividend amounts into 
bank accounts of shareholders without involving printing and dispatch of actual dividend warrant. CDC is 
the only entity in Pakistan to introduce such groundbreaking service.

64



We are accountable by our stakeholders including the government, our clients and the general public for 
protection of sensitive information. Suspension of our business activities will result in disruption of Capital 
Market so in order to eliminate this possibility, we have been engaged in Business Continuity Planning 
since 2001. BCP is defined as ‘advanced planning and arrangements to ensure continuity of critical functions 
of an organization in case of a disaster’. By continuously investing time and resources including dedicated 
teams, we have achieved international standards in Business Continuity Planning.

CDC has a personification of evolving with time, which has made significant contributions to our overall 
business strategy. In the last quarter of 2015, we are aiming to acquire ISO 22301, which is the best 
prevailing BCP certification in the world.

The role of a market infrastructure institution in overall progress of an economy can be best spelled out in 
words of Mr. Jorge Jaramillo, Chairman of the World Forum of Central Securities Depositories (CSDs).

“As we have been navigating the latest regulatory roadmap, it has been global Financial Market 
Infrastructures who have been the vehicles of stability to prepare the financial markets for their journeys 
ahead. 

While the media spotlight has fallen on banks, custodians, regulators and policymakers, players in the 
post-trade environment have been less visible to the public eye. Regulators continue to develop and 
undertake new measures aimed at promoting transparency and strengthening control over the financial 
markets. Governments continue to implement these legislative changes leaving the Financial Market 
Infrastructures in their wake to boldly develop and comply with their respective new laws. 

Financial Market Infrastructures, such as Central Securities Depositories (CSDs), understand the knock-on 
effect that this has on their stakeholders as they too are under increasing pressure to be compliant with the 
abundance of reforms. As such, great opportunities and innovations have been born through various global 
and regional projects such as shorter settlement cycles, Trade Repositories, Collateral Management 
Services, the implementation of Legal Entity Identifiers, as well as the move to new messaging standards.  
There has been a consistent theme running throughout the industry to bring efficiencies and mitigate risk 
through the implementation of these new initiatives. All the while, CSDs have had to maintain their 
operations at the highest standard while under continued pressure to cut costs.”
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1. A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such Corporation or 
 such other Company, is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials 
 or any other person to act as its authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and 
 the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other 
 Company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend 
 and vote instead of him / her. 

3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly 
 authorised in writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned 
 on the form.

Notes:

NOTICE OF 23RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited will be held 
on Tuesday, September 29, 2015 at  4:30 p.m. at its registered office situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S, Main 
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to transact the following business:

1. To receive and approve the annual audited standalone and consolidated Accounts of the Company for the year 
 ended June 30, 2015, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon and Statement of Compliance 
 with the Code of Corporate Governance.

2. To consider and declare cash dividend of Rs. 3.25 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 32.5% to the shareholders as 
 recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2015.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2016 and fix their remuneration.

Ordinary Business:

1. Increase in Authorized Share Capital

 To consider and approve increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 750 Million to Rs. 1.5 
 Billion and to approve the amendments in the Memorandum of Association of the Company resulting from this 
 increase and to pass resolution given in the statement under section 160 (1)(b).  

 A statement under section 160 (1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, pertaining to the special business is 
 being sent to the shareholders with this notice.

Special Business:

By order of the Board

CFO & Company Secretary

Karachi, Tuesday, September 08, 2015

Shariq Jafrani

-Sd-
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5. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

6. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting if requested.

7. The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or 
 a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not 
 less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.

8. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on September 28, 2015 and September 29, 2015. Transfer received 
in order at the Registered Office of the Company located at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400 before the said date shall be treated in time, subject to Article 26 of Company’s Articles of Association, for any 
corporate entitlements approved by the members.

Book Closure:

Presently, the paid-up capital of the Company is Rs. 650,000,000 as against the present Authorized Share Capital of Rs. 
750,000,000. The Board of Directors of the Company in its 170th meeting held on September 03, 2015 recommended to increase 
the Authorized Share Capital to Rs. 1,500,000,000 to cater the future requirements of increase in paid-up capital of the Company.  
This would effectively mean an increase in the authorized number of shares from 75 Million ordinary shares to 150 Million ordinary 
shares. The Board believes that such increase will also result in building up the reserves in line with the international depositories 
and is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders in particular and for the capital market in general.

All legal, corporate and regulatory formalities will be fulfilled in consultation with the Legal Advisors. The amendments being made 
would be in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders and no prejudice will be caused to any shareholders or any 
business of the Company as a result of these amendments. 

For this purpose, it is intended to pass with or without modification the following resolution as Special Resolution: 

Increase in Authorized Share Capital

“Resolved that the Authorized Share Capital of the Company be increased from existing Rs. 750,000,000 (Rupees Seven Hundred 
and Fifty Million) to Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Million only) (i.e. an increase in the authorized number of 
shares from 75 Million ordinary shares to 150 Million ordinary shares having a face value of Rs. 10 each).

Resolved further that Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company is be and hereby amended as follows:

V. The authorised shares capital of the company is Rs.1,500,000,000/- (Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Million) divided into 
 150,000,000 (One Hundred Fifty Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each.  The company shall have powers to increase, reduce 
 or reorganize the capital of the company and divide shares in the capital for the time being into several classes constituting 
 ordinary shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Resolved further that all legal and ancillary formalities shall be carried out by the Company in accordance of the law, and that the 
Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary be and are hereby jointly and severally authorized to fulfil all legal, corporate and 
procedural formalities in the regard.”  

The Directors of the Company are interested in the above business only to the extent of their holding of Qualification Shares in 
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Special Resolution

This statement sets out material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on September 29, 2015.

Statement under Section 160 (1) (b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 regarding the
Special Business:
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For the year ended June 30, 2015

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES
OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance as contained in the Listing Regulations of the 
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed 
company is managed in compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. Central Depository Company of Pakistan 
Limited (“the Company”), although not being a listed company, has voluntarily adopted the best practices of Corporate Governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of non-executive directors on its Board of Directors. The Board 
 comprises of ten (10) non-executive directors representing respective institutional shareholders, a nominee 
 director of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as per Articles of Association and the Chief Executive 
 Officer by virtue of position as per statute. 

2. The directors have voluntarily confirmed that none of them is serving as director on more than seven listed 
 companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).  

3. All the resident directors of the Company have declared that they are registered taxpayers and that none of them 
 has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution,  a Non Banking 
 Financial Institution or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that
 stock exchange.

4. A casual vacancy occurred in the Board on June 23, 2014 as mentioned in the last year’s Statement of 
 Compliance was filled in the current financial year within prescribed time. There were no casual vacancies 
 occurred in the Board during the financial year ended June 30, 2015.  

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
 disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision and a mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
 the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were 
 approved or amended has been maintained.  A mechanism is in place for annual evaluation of the Board’s
 own performance.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and the Board has taken decisions on material transactions, 
 including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief 
 Executive Officer and fees paid to non-executive directors for attending the Board meetings.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
 Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, 
 along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before each meeting. The minutes of 
 the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. The directors have been provided with copies of the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association and the 
 Code of Corporate Governance and they are well conversant with their duties and responsibilities. The Company is 
 committed to arrange orientation course and training programs for its directors to apprise them of their duties and 
 responsibilities. Training programs for two directors were arranged during the year.

10. The terms of appointment including remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), Company Secretary and 
 Chief Internal Auditor were approved by the Board.

11. The directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully 
 describes significant matters required to be disclosed.
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12. The CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements of the Company before approval by the Board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than holding 
 qualification shares of the Company as required under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed Board Audit Committee (“BAC”), comprising of five non-executive directors and the
 Chairman of BAC is a non-executive director.  

16. The meetings of the BAC were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and annual financial 
 results of the Company and as required by the Code. The Terms of Reference of the BAC have been determined by 
 the Board and advised to the BAC for compliance.

17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises five members, of whom four are 
 non-executive directors and the chairman of the Committee is a non-executive director.

18. The Company has an effective internal audit function.

19. The Statutory Auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
 quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any partner of the 
 firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are 
 in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (“IFAC”) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the 
 Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
 except in accordance with the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges and the auditors have confirmed that 
 they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

21. We confirm that all material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.  

Chairman

Karachi, Thursday, September 03, 2015

Husain Lawai
Chief Executive Officer
Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

-Sd- -Sd-
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Dubbed as the 21st Century Silk Route initiative: China-Pakistan 
Economic Corridor (CPEC) is the most accurate depiction of Silk 
Routes in modern times. CPEC is a developmental megaproject 
aimed at providing necessary infrastructure to facilitate trade in Asia 
and Middle East. Establishment of CPEC guarantees continued 
mutual progress and sustained prosperity to all the involved nations.

Having the necessary resources, CDC has set its focus to revolutionize Pakistan’s 
economy by introducing digitalization and automated solutions. CDC has plans to 
introduce a number of initiatives in support of this cause, which includes; Cross 
border linkages and development of a Centralized Insurance Repository which will 
solve all inherent problems of our Insurance Sector. All these future endeavors will 
help us contribute to Pakistan’s overall efficiency and growth.

Leading Pakistan Capital Market
on the Road to Progress



REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance (the Statement) with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended 
June 30, 2015 to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulation of Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges which has been 
voluntarily adopted by the Company.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent 
where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions 
of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirement of the Code. A review is limited primarily to 
inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems 
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Director’s statement 
on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks.

The Code require the Company to place before the Audit Committee and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board 
of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to 
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification 
for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval 
of related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any 
procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement does not appropriately reflect the 
Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as adopted by the Company for the year ended 
June 30, 2015.

Karachi
Date: September 03, 2015

-Sd-

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) as at June 30, 
2015 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flows 
statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we 
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present the above 
said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said 
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
 Ordinance, 1984;

(b) in our opinion:

 (i) the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes 
  thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with 
  the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied.

 (ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

 (iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with 
  the objects of the Company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated 
 balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
 unconsolidated cash flows statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes 
 forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the 
 information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true 
 and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2015 and of the profit, total comprehensive 
 income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Karachi
Date: September 03, 2015

-Sd-

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
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UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserve

  

Reserve fund
Unappropriated profit
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net

Total shareholders' equity 

Non-current liabilities
Long term deposits
Deferred taxation - net

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fee
Taxation - net

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments
Total equity and liabilities

ASSETS
Non - current assets
Fixed assets

Property and equipment 
Intangibles

Long term investments
Long term loans 
Long term deposits and prepayments

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets
Total assets  

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

Authorised Share capital 
   75,000,000 (2014: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
   65,000,000 (2014: 65,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

CHAIRMAN
Sd-

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sd-

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

5

6

7
8

9
10
11
12

13

14
14.2

15
16
17

18
19

20
21
22
23

750,000,000     

650,000,000     
100,000,000     

1,356,270,256  
25,045,686       

2,131,315,942  
475,083,518     

2,606,399,460 

113,812,500     
83,873,751       

197,686,251     

307,517,755     
734,998             

46,819,007       
25,623,679       

380,695,439     
578,381,690     

3,184,781,150  

877,812,435     
93,171,608        

970,984,043     
100,000,000     

10,961,140        
6,707,800          

1,088,652,983 

168,422,573     
5,182,626          

27,095,183       
41,887,810        
1,378,870          

1,811,501,834  
40,659,271        

2,096,128,167  
3,184,781,150  

750,000,000       

650,000,000 
100,000,000 

1,122,548,586 
- 

1,872,548,586    
483,986,168        

2,356,534,754    

111,550,000 
71,711,601           

183,261,601        

228,694,314        
1,359,998            

41,152,125          
2,508,492            

273,714,929        
456,976,530        

2,813,511,284    

899,107,803        
71,360,295          

970,468,098       
640,957,775       

12,931,437          
8,782,287            

1,633,139,597    

155,699,860       
5,945,221            

21,932,914          
29,918,658          
13,321,635          

917,073,340        
36,480,059          

1,180,371,687     
2,813,511,284    
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Operating income 

Operating and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other operating expenses

Financial charges

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 

 Profit after income tax

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014

Note Rupees Rupees

24 1,365,339,166   1,086,770,827   

25 (837,590,135)      (733,430,487)      

527,749,031       353,340,340       

26 168,720,651       146,066,750       

27 (30,987,704)        (22,216,738)        

28 (142,191)              (154,550)             

137,590,756       123,695,462       

665,339,787       477,035,802

29 (233,600,000)     (148,010,768)      

431,739,787       329,025,034 

30 6.64                     5.06 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sd-

CHAIRMAN
Sd-

UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Profit after income tax 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of available for sale investments
Impact of deferred tax
Gain realised on disposal of investments

Items that will never be reclassified to profit and loss account
Loss on remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation
Impact of current tax
Impact of deferred tax

Total other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account subsequently     

Surplus arising on revaluation of property and equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, 
in a separate account below equity. 

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

431,739,787    329,025,034    

37,381,621      6,816,264         
(12,335,935)

    
-

- (11,344,807)      

25,045,686      (4,528,543)        

(9,694,712)       (12,441,859)      
3,200,000        -

(7,178,592)       4,230,232         
(13,673,304)     (8,211,627)        

11,372,382      (12,740,170)      

443,112,169    316,284,864     

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sd-

CHAIRMAN
Sd-
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds
Depreciation
Amortization
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Return on bank deposits
Return on investments - held to maturity
Gain on sale of available for sale investments
Financial charges
Provision for retirement benefit plan

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fees

Decrease / (increase) in long term loans - net (assets)
Decrease in long term deposits and prepayments (assets)
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)

Cash generated from operations

Contribution paid to retirement benefit plan
Financial charges paid 
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Mark-up received 
Investments - net

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

665,339,787     477,035,802     

14.1 82,396,483       87,444,594 
14.2.1 21,922,242        23,450,414        

26 (3,300,098)         (3,186,250)         
26 (5,616,888)         (4,293,402)         

(63,810,190)       (10,706,100)       
- (11,344,807)       

28 142,191              154,550             
32.3 27,198,505        22,358,540       

58,932,245        103,877,539     
724,272,032     580,913,341      

(12,722,713)       (27,129,102)       
762,595             (712,190)            

(5,162,269)         (277,577)            
11,942,765        (10,013,130)       
(5,179,622)         (38,131,999)       

66,859,567       38,286,984       
(625,000)            375,000             
5,666,882          14,163,321        

71,901,449        52,825,305       

1,970,297          (1,510,307)         
2,074,487           1,211,497          
2,262,500          6,575,000          
6,307,284          6,276,190          

797,301,143      601,882,837     

32.2 (24,929,343)      (23,946,229)      
(142,191)            (154,550)            

(212,884,653)    (156,734,675)    
(237,956,187)    (180,835,454)    

559,344,956     421,047,382     

(107,919,961)     (110,989,258)    
6,385,389          8,237,415          

57,457,926        4,494,958          
578,339,396     (85,936,232)      
534,262,750     (184,193,117)     

(195,000,000)    (195,000,000)    
(195,000,000)    (195,000,000)    

898,607,706     41,854,265        

953,553,399     911,699,134     
31 1,852,161,105  953,553,399     

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sd-

CHAIRMAN
Sd-
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Balance as at July 1, 2013

  -  Other comprehensive income

Balance as at  June 30, 2014

Balance as at July 1, 2014

Total comprehensive income 

  -  Profit after income tax 

  -  Other comprehensive income

Balance as at  June 30, 2015

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Total comprehensive income  
  

Transactions with owners, recognised  
   directly in equity

Final dividend paid @ 30% 
   ( i.e. Rs. 3 per share )

Final dividend paid @ 30% 
      ( i.e. Rs. 3 per share)

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Transactions with owners, recognised 
   directly in equity

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
   fixed assets on account of incremental 
   depreciation - net of deferred tax
  

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of     
fixed assets on account of incremental 
   depreciation - net of deferred tax
  

  -  Profit after income tax 

* Reserve Unappropriated Total
fund profit shareholders'

equity

Note
650,000,000   100,000,000   4,528,543 1,740,767,568 

- -     - 329,025,034    

- -  (4,528,543) (12,740,170)      
- -      (4,528,543) 316,284,864 

6 - -  - 10,496,154      

- -    - (195,000,000)   
650,000,000   100,000,000   - 1,872,548,586

650,000,000   100,000,000   - 1,872,548,586

-                   -      - 431,739,787    

-                   -       25,045,686 11,372,382      
-                   -      25,045,686 443,112,169    

6 -                   -  - 10,655,187      

-                   -    - (195,000,000)   
650,000,000   100,000,000

986,239,025

329,025,034

(8,211,627)       
320,813,407

10,496,154      

(195,000,000)
1,122,548,586

1,122,548,586

431,739,787

(13,673,304)
418,066,483

10,655,187      

(195,000,000)
1,356,270,256 25,045,686       2,131,315,942 

Surplus on 
revaluation of  

Available for sale 
investments

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up share 

capital

Rupees

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sd-

CHAIRMAN
Sd-
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS1

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public Company with its liability limited by shares on 
January 21, 1993 and received certificate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994.  The principal business activities of the Company 
are to act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities. The registered office of the 
Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. 

The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance Companies 
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations.

The Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and Centralized Information Sharing 
Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).
        
The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries with names and styles of ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee Company Limited.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION2

Statement of compliance2.1

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the 
Ordinance) approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise such International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies  Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions of and directives issued 
under Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail. Further the Company has voluntarily adpoted fourth schedule of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
 
These unconsolidated financial statements comprise unconsolidated balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the 
notes forming part thereof.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant to the company2.2.2

'The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 
1, 2014 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations and are 
therefore not presented here.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards         2.2

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the company and adopted in the current year2.2.1

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became 
effective during the current year.

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2015.

Standard, amendments and interpretation

IAS 19 - Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle 

IAS 36 - Recoverable amount Disclosures for non - financial assets (Amendments to IAS 36)

IFRIC 21 - Levies

IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 - Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)

IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)

Effective Date

July 1, 2014

July 1, 2014

July 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below 
against the respective standard or interpretation.

2.2.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by
the Company

Standard, amendments and interpretation

IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation  of Financial Statements)    

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investment Entities : Applying the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12  and IAS 28)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 
Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle

IAS 27 - Equity method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 
(Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

IFRS 11 - Accounting for Interests in joint operations (Amendments to IFRS 11)

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in other Entities

IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement 

IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Effective Date

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for 
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the 
financial statements of the Company.

2.2.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP)

Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts   

IFRS 15 -  Revenue from Contracts with Customers   

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (2014)

IASB effective date
(Annual periods  beginning

on or after)

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

Basis of measurement2.3

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement 
benefits at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments 
at fair value, and amortised cost.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.
Presentation and functional currency2.4

The unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

General2.5

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES4

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies 
and methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 3

The preparation of  unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated 
financial statements are as follows:

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have 
material effect on the unconsolidated financial statements.

a) Staff retirement benefits      

b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets      

c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts      

d) Provision for taxation      

e) Deferred taxation      

f) Revaluation of land and building      

g) Investments 

Note

4.1

4.2

4.6

4.10.1

4.10.2

4.2 & 14

4.5

Staff retirement benefits4.1

Defined benefit plan4.1.1

The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying period 
of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of actuarial 
recommendations. Last actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2015. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in 
the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant actuarial 
assumptions are stated in note 32.

Provident fund

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions  at the rate of 10% of basic salary are 
made to the fund both by the Company and the employees.

Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund

The Company has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 1, 2014. 
Contributions are made by the Company to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.     

Defined contribution plan4.1.2

The Company also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Compensated absences  4.1.3

The Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on 
cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements on the basis of best 
managment estimates.

Intangible assets and amortization4.2.1

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have probable economic benefit beyond 
one year are recognized as intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line 
method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Company.

Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal.

The amortization period for software is five years. 

Impairment of non-financial assets4.2.2

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. 
If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit 
and loss account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows 
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which there are generating separately identifiable cash flows (cash 
generating units).

Leased

The Company accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are 
determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial 
charges are allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation 
is charged to income applying the same basis as for owned assets.

Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work in progress 
account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried 
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are 
stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Revaluation has been accounted for as per section 235 of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not 
capitalized and treated as a period cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.3.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14.1 and is charged to income. Depreciation on additions during 
the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of retirement/disposal.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major renovations and 
improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently.

Property and equipment  4.2

Borrowing costs4.3

Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly 
attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account in 
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Investment in subsidiary companies4.4

Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In arriving at the impairment in respect of any 
diminution in the value of these investments, consideration is given only if there is a permanent impairment in the value of these investments.

Financial instruments4.5

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument.        

Financial assets4.5.1

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:     

• loans and receivables;
• held to maturity;
• available for sale, and
• held for trading investment

Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at cost including associated transaction costs except that are incurred on 
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which is the fair value of the consideration given for it.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
After initial recognition these are carried at amortized cost.

Held to maturity

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the Company has a positive intent 
and ability to hold these investments till maturity. After initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.

Available for sale investment

Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, 
are classified as 'available for sale investment'. Financial assets at 'available for sale' are those non-derivative financial assets that are 
designated as available for sale financial asset, or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for 
trading investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried 
on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus on 
revaluation of 'available for sale' investment through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized and then the surplus 
on remeasurement on available for sale investment is transfered to profit and loss account.

Held for trading investments

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in prices are classified as held for 
trading investment.

Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss account. These investments are 
marked to market and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments 
are taken to the profit and loss account for the year.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset 
is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash 
flows of that asset.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

Subsequent measurement

The financial assets are measured subsequently as described below:        
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

4.5.2 Derecognition  

Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial 
liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or 
expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the profit and loss account immediately

Off setting4.5.3

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legal right to set-off the 
transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions4.7

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of obligation.

Trade and other payables4.8

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services.

Foreign currency translations4.9

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance 
sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. 
Exchange gains or losses are taken to income currently.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates 
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value was determined.

Deferred4.10.2

Deferred tax is provided for, using the balance sheet liability method, providing the temporary differences between the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based 
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be 
utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been 
enacted. The company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive 
income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.

Cash and cash equivalent 4.11

Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of unconsolidated 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments which are 
highly liquid and maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition, that readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade debts and other receivables4.6

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Taxation4.10

Current 4.10.1

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and rebates, if 
any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws.
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Revenue recognition4.12

Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement in 
CDS on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis.

Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading 
day of the month at the respective Stock Exchange of Pakistan. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost.

Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.
        
Other fees are recognized when the Company renders the related services. 
        
Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.
        
Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental to 
the sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.

Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for the year in which they arise.        
        
Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis.        

Interest and Dividends4.13

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other than those from 
investments in associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distribution to the shareholders' of the Company is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated financial statements in the period 
in which such dividends are approved.

Related party transactions 4.14

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL5

Associated companies held 48,037,600 (2014: 43,750,200) shares in the Company as at year end.5.1

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

fully paid in cash 

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

issued as fully paid bonus shares

10,000,000 10,000,000

55,000,000 55,000,000

65,000,000 65,000,000

Number of shares
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees

100,000,000 100,000,000

550,000,000 550,000,000

650,000,000 650,000,000

June 30, 2014June 30, 2015
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Note
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees

8

543,572,417

(10,655,187) 
(5,248,077) 

(15,903,264) 
527,669,153

(59,586,249)
 1,752,537 

5,248,077 

(52,585,635)
475,083,518

43,150,000 
27,325,000 

1,200,000        
42,137,500 

113,812,500

559,475,681

(10,496,154)
(5,407,110)

(15,903,264)
543,572,417

(66,904,928)

1,911,569

5,407,110 

(59,586,249)
483,986,168

42,650,000
26,725,000

1,300,000
40,875,000

111,550,000

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

(382,518) (394,109)

- (7,178,592)

19,334,699 19,698,053

6 52,585,635 59,586,249

12,335,935 -
83,873,751 71,711,601

7

7.1

8

6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net

Transferred to accumulated profit:
 - surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to 
  unappropriated profit during the  year - net of deferred tax

 - related deferred tax liability

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

 - remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate

 - incremental depreciation charged during the year 
transferred to profit and loss account

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Due to: 
 - Participants
 - Institutions
 - Pledgees
 - Issuers

DEFERRED TAXATION - net

- Provision for doubtful debts

- Deferred tax arising on defined benefit obligation - gratuity

- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model 
     over tax written down value of property and equipment

- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 

- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year 

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year 

 - surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year 

Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 
at the end of the year 

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary differences on: 

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary differences on:

These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the 
CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the 
Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.

86



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

9.1 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations

Net defined benefit liability
Accumulated Compensated absences

9.2 Accumulated compensated absences

Provision at the beginning of the year
Provision for the year
Payments made during the year
Provision at the end of the year

10 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Due to: 
-  Participants
-  Institutions

11 UNEARNED FEE

Annual fee
 - Issuers
 - Investor Account Services (IAS)

Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee
Fresh issue fee
Sub account maintenance fee

 - Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance 
      Industry (CISSII) Partcipants

12 TAXATION - net

Provision for taxation - net

12.1 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed the order under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 
2008 creating a tax demand of Rs. 10.071 million. The Company had paid the tax demand and filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland 
Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)] which was decided vide order dated August 28, 2014 against the Company. Presently, the appeal is pending before 
the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, for adjudication. The Management, on the basis of opinion from tax advisor, is of the view that the 
appeal would eventually be decided in the Company’s favour.

9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable to suppliers
Accrued expenses
Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations
Investor account services - current account
Workers' Welfare Fund 
ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary
Others

32.2
9.2

31,707,535
29,579,108
61,286,643

19,743,661
24,294,296
44,037,957

24,294,296
8,661,033

(3,376,221)
29,579,108

22,585,513
4,640,291

(2,931,508)
24,294,296

261,137
473,861
734,998

261,137
1,098,861
1,359,998

2,823,937
18,924,732

4,560,004
20,125

-
20,490,209
46,819,007

1,800,993
17,614,603

4,000,000
-

139,722
17,596,807
41,152,125

25,623,679 2,508,492

Note

9.1

 

2,304,586
176,578,070
61,286,643
45,670,607
13,745,902

558,068
7,373,879

307,517,755 

3,739,526 
132,626,309

44,037,957
36,942,055

9,746,247
-

1,602,220
228,694,314

June 30, 2015
Rupees

June 30, 2014
Rupees

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1 Contingencies

During the year 2006-07, a suit filed by a sub account holder (investor) was decreed by a single judge of the Honorable Lahore High Court 
(LHC) against the Company and Lahore Stock Exchange Limited (LSE). The Company filed an intra-court appeal against the order before a 
Divisional Bench (the Bench) of the LHC. The Bench has admitted the appeal for regular hearing. The Bench has also stayed the execution of 
judgment / decree passed earlier by the single judge. Subsequent to the financial year-end 2014-15, the Bench of the LHC vide its order dated 
6-7-2015 settled the matter between LSE and legal heirs of investor through settlement agreement dated 20-02-2014. 

Afterwards, the Company has also filed an Application in LHC for setting aside said decree and disposal of the case. Accordingly, LHC vide its 
order dated 24-08-2015 disposed of the said decree and judgment against the Company without incurring any financial cost.
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13.2 Commitments

Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition software, hardware  
    and office equipments

14 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets
Capital work-in-progress 

14.1 Operating assets

Year ended June 30, 2015

Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals 
Cost
Depreciation

Transferred to subsidiary 
Cost
Depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

As at June 30, 2015

Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year

Depreciation rate

Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions

Year ended June 30, 2014

Disposals 
Cost
Depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

As at June 30, 2014

Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year

Depreciation rate

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

21,116,452 9,128,907

Note

14.1 894,270,808
14.1.3 4,836,995

899,107,803       

427,777,000    319,215,951     6,640,483 23,603,774 74,527,538 894,270,808       
- -  16,197,802            6,637,691 28,863,087 61,964,413          

OWNED

Land-Lease 
hold Building

Furniture, fixtures 
and electrical 
equipment

Vehicles Office equipment 
Computer 
equipment

 Total Operating 
Assets 

- (46,249)              (11,786,499) (5,783,035)       (28,933,793) (56,343,871)         
-  24,266               11,786,391 5,693,103        28,916,539 55,286,521         
- (21,983)              (108) (89,932)             (17,254)             (1,057,350)           

- - - (64,249)             - (4,969,999)          
- - - 24,629              - 2,942,058            

- (39,620)             - (2,027,941)           
- (26,506,997) (3,469,828) (7,622,833) (30,510,226) (82,396,483)        

427,777,000    292,686,971 19,368,349 22,489,080 72,863,145 870,753,447       

427,777,000
-

419,115,559 155,325,258 172,927,796 384,059,811 1,628,066,369
(126,428,588) (135,956,909) (150,438,716) (311,196,666) (757,312,922)

427,777,000 292,686,971     19,368,349 22,489,080 72,863,145      870,753,447       

427,777,000 344,453,358 12,784,744 20,808,086 51,731,200       896,926,384       
- 1,245,000          4,912,271               17,994,578 42,992,244      89,840,183 

OWNED

Computer 
equipment

Land-Lease 
hold Building

Furniture, fixtures 
and electrical 
equipment

Vehicles Office equipment 
 Total Operating 

Assets 

- -  (895,328)                (11,634,919) (69,561,724) (99,681,731) 
- -  895,322                 11,423,433 69,541,718       94,630,566         
- - (6) (211,486) (20,006) (5,051,165)           

- (26,482,407) (11,056,526) (14,987,404) (20,175,900) (87,444,594)        
427,777,000 319,215,951 6,640,483              23,603,774 74,527,538 894,270,808       

427,777,000 419,161,808 150,913,955 172,137,389 384,130,517 1,627,415,826    
- (99,945,857) (144,273,472) (148,533,615) (309,602,979) (733,145,018)      

427,777,000 319,215,951 6,640,483              23,603,774 74,527,538       894,270,808       

42,506,062
10,265,833

(9,794,295)
8,866,222
(928,073)

(4,905,750)
2,917,429

(1,988,321)
(14,286,599)

35,568,902

68,860,945
(33,292,043)

35,568,902

39,371,996
22,696,090

(17,589,760)
12,770,093
(4,819,667)

(14,742,357)
42,506,062

73,295,157
(30,789,095)

42,506,062

- 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

- 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

870,753,447
7,058,988

877,812,435

Rupees

Rupees
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14.1.1

14.1.2 Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and written down values would have been as follows:

Land-lease hold
Building

Land - Lease hold and building have been revalued on June 30, 2012 by an independent valuer on the basis of professional assessments 
of the market 

14.1.3 Capital work in progress

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions
-  Furniture, fixtures, electrical equipment and air conditioners
-  Building
-  Computers and office equipment
-  Vehicles

Transferred to operating assets
Balance at the end of the year

14.2 Intangibles

Softwares
Softwares under implementation

14.2.1 Softwares

At July 1, 2014
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2015
Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Amortization charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

At June 30, 2015
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value at the end of the year

Amortization rate

14.2.2 Softwares under implementation

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Transferred to softwares
Balance at the end of the year

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

59,458,250 59,458,250
133,336,568 143,962,284

Net Book value
June 30, 2015

Rupees

59,458,250 
212,055,364

June 30, 2014
Rupees

59,458,250
212,101,613

Cost

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

4,836,995 8,928,533 

14,375,372 4,449,427 
- 3,245,000 

38,263,201 55,358,128
11,547,833 22,696,090
64,186,406 85,748,645
69,023,401 94,677,178

(89,840,183)14.1 (61,964,413) 
7,058,988 4,836,995 

14.2.1 86,858,561 64,368,802
14.2.2 6,313,047 6,991,493

93,171,608 71,360,295

248,275,935 213,865,140
(183,907,133) (160,456,719)

64,368,802 53,408,421

64,368,802 53,408,421
44,412,001 34,410,795

25 (21,922,242) (23,450,414)
86,858,561 64,368,802

292,687,936 248,275,935
(205,829,375) (183,907,133) 

86,858,561 64,368,802

20% 20%

6,991,493 16,161,675
43,733,555 25,240,613
50,725,048 41,402,288

14.2.1 (44,412,001) (34,410,795)
6,313,047 6,991,493
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14.3

15 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in subsidiaries - at cost
- ITMinds Limited
- CDC Trustee Company Limited

15.1

15.2

16 LONG TERM LOANS

Considered good - secured
- Housing loans
- Car loans

Transferred to current maturity

Loan outstanding for period:
Less than three years
More than three years

Reconciliation of loans to executives 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Add: Disbursement / addition during the year

Less: Recovered during the year 
Balance at the end of the year

16.1

16.2

Held-to-maturity investment - unquoted debt securities 
Investment in related parties

Investments in Other than related parties

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

15.1 - 575,957,775

50,000,000 15,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000

15.2 100,000,000 65,000,000
100,000,000 640,957,775

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

16.1 & 16.2 4,211,143
16.1 & 16.2 10,619,712

14,830,855
19 (3,869,715)

10,961,140

10,494,789
4,336,066

14,830,855

9,700,760
1,456,700

11,157,460
(2,472,483)

8,684,977

4,677,799
12,422,851
17,100,650
(4,169,213)
12,931,437

12,149,399
4,951,251

17,100,650

10,771,110
4,262,600

15,033,710
(5,332,950)

9,700,760

During the year company has reclassified its investment from held to maturity to available for sale investment. The company has disclosed 
the investment in note 22 of the unconsolidated financial statements. 

Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 50,000 or above: 

This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiaries for IT services and Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) office under the name of 
ITMinds Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2014: 1,500,000) of Rs.10 each and for trustee and custodial services under the name 
of CDC Trustee Company Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2014: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each. 

Interest @ 3% per annum on reducing balance is recovered on housing and car loans and taken to profit and loss account currently. 
However, no interest is recovered from employees who surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment period for 
housing and car loan is fifteen and five years respectively.

The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 17.100 million (2014: Rs. 17.728 million).

iphone 5S

Honda City

Particular of assets Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Written 
Down Value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain on 
disposal

65,000 4,333 60,667 35,000 (25,667)

1,638,000 737,100 900,900 1,320,000 419,100

Particulars of buyer

Sold to dealer 
(S.Z.Communication)
Sold to employee
(Idress Saghar)

1,703,000 741,433 961,567 1,355,000 393,433

Rupees
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

4,868,018 4,345,118
1,247,000 1,247,000

50,000 250,000
6,165,018 5,842,118

542,782 2,940,169
6,707,800 8,782,287

119,901,799 109,903,148
48,520,774 45,796,712

168,422,573 155,699,860
18.1 1,159,136 1,159,136

169,581,709 156,858,996
18.2 (1,159,136) (1,159,136)

168,422,573 155,699,860

17 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 
 - Utilities 
 - Rented premises
 - Clubs membership 

Prepayments

18 TRADE DEBTS - net

Considered good:

 - Secured
 - Unsecured

Considered doubtful, unsecured

Provision for impairment

18.1 The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:

18.2

18.3

18.3.1 The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:

The Company reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently 
opening balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting 
to Rs. 0.4 million (2014: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2014: 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end.

Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 7.3 million (2014: Rs. 3.5
million).

Within 45 days 
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total 

Gross Impaired Net  Gross Impaired Net

158,732,905 - 158,732,905  142,237,864
9,689,668 - 9,689,668  13,461,996
1,159,136 1,159,136 -  -

169,581,709 1,159,136 168,422,573

142,237,864
13,461,996

1,159,136
156,858,996

-
-

1,159,136
1,159,136 155,699,860

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees

Rupees Rupees

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

18.4 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs. 10.6 million (2014: Rs. 7.8 million).

Within 45 days 
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total 

Gross Impaired Net  Gross Impaired Net

 6,121,821 -  6,121,821  
 1,155,698 -  1,155,698

- - -  
 7,277,519 -  7,277,519

 3,413,152
 71,671

-
 3,484,823

 3,413,152
 71,671

-
 3,484,823

-
-
-
-
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

16 3,869,715 4,169,213 

916,220 1,014,241
396,691 761,767

1,312,911 1,776,008
5,182,626 5,945,221

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

242,666 327,662
22.4 41,645,144 29,590,996

41,887,810 29,918,658

- 10,434,651
- 30,400

1,378,870 2,856,584
1,378,870 13,321,635

19 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Current maturity of long term loans

Considered doubtful, unsecured
-  Advance salary to employee
-  Advance for expenses

20 MARK-UP ACCRUED

Mark-up accrued on Bank deposits

Mark-up accrued on Pakistan Investment Bonds

22.3 This represents investment in open ended mutual fund. 

21.1 All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.

21 OTHER RECEIVABLES

From related parties
- ITMinds Limited - (Subsidiary)
- CDC Trustee Company Limited - (Subsidiary)

From other parties 

22 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments - Unquoted debt securities 

-  Term Deposit Certificates 
-  Treasury Bills

Held for trading investments

Available for sale investments

-  Term Deposit Certificates 
-  Treasury Bills
-  Pakistan Investment Bonds 

19.1 All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.

22.1 This represents investment in Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 7.25% to 9.95% per annum (2014: 8.6% 
to 9.9% per annum).

22.4 The Company has investments in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs). These are measured at fair value using  the effective interest method. 
The effective interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2014: 11.87% to 11.80%) per annum.

22.2 This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 6.72% to 9.97% per annum (2014: 8.96% to 9.98% 
per annum).

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

22.1 & 31 - 201,411,774
22.2 & 31 193,429,403 331,561,843

22.3 & 31 300,103,519 384,099,723

22.1 & 31 227,036,816 -
22.2 & 31 147,562,259 -
22.4 & 31 943,369,837 -

1,811,501,834 917,073,340
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Note

23.1

Note

24.1
24.2

24.3

24.1.1

24.1.2

Note

24.2.1

June 30, 2015
Rupees

38,291,843
2,235,824

131,604
40,659,271

June 30, 2015
Rupees

933,982,481
403,423,649

33,700,529
3,948,825

1,375,055,484
(9,716,318)

1,365,339,166

153,841,158
344,841,394

54,064,698
27,452,000

211,555,272
129,833,425

7,431,264
-

2,528,470
2,434,800

933,982,481

185,362,053
(31,520,895)
153,841,158

June 30, 2015
Rupees

425,355,542
(21,931,893)
403,423,649

June 30, 2014
Rupees

28,662,459
7,709,956

107,644
36,480,059

June 30, 2014
Rupees

738,309,744
326,364,832

27,174,050
3,188,168

1,095,036,794
(8,265,967)

1,086,770,827

120,632,747
270,126,646

44,330,849
18,910,000

167,165,277
70,165,543
22,197,055
10,375,749
12,147,478

2,258,400
738,309,744

150,151,729
(29,518,982)
120,632,747

June 30, 2014
Rupees

343,428,165
(17,063,333)
326,364,832

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances
-  in saving accounts
-  in current accounts

Cash in hand

23.1 The rate of profit varies from 6% to 8.35% (2014: 6% to 8.35%) per annum.

23.2 Bank balances include Rs. 3.840 million (2014: Rs. 3.501 million) held with related parties. 

24 OPERATING INCOME 

Depository services
Trusteeship and custodial services - net
Share registrar services
Miscellaneous

SECP supervision fee

24.1 Depository services

Transaction fee - net
Custody fee
Sub account maintenance fee
CDS connection fee
Securities induction fee
Annual fee
Cancellation fee
Pledge creation / release fee
Withdrawal fee
RSA service charges

24.1.1 Transaction fee - net

Transaction fee
Less: SECP levy

24.1.2

24.2 Trusteeship and custodial services - net

Trusteeship and custodial businesses
Less: SECP levy

24.2.1

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2014: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction fee 
which is borne by the Company.

SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2014: 0.005%) of average annual assets of Open End Scheme or Closed End Scheme under its 
trusteeship. 

24.3 SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2014: 1%)  of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee.
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25 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Training and development 
Communication
Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Legal and professional charges
Fee and subscription
Advertisement and publicity
Office supplies
Meeting expenses
Wide-area-network line rent
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation 
Amortization
Fuel and electricity
Security services
Cafeteria
Miscellaneous

25.1 Salaries and other benefits include:

- Compensated absences 

- Gratuity 

- Defined contribution gratuity fund

- Contribution to provident fund

25.2 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives:

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

472,548,040 399,279,324
7,400,515 5,992,136 

12,667,540 15,347,681
3,870,719 2,991,019 

10,867,166 10,080,092
8,484,969 6,258,663 

14,322,056 12,385,555
22,263,691 19,571,047
63,897,953 59,703,325
18,013,474 9,948,209 
3,822,844 3,220,295 

17,819,899 9,112,649 
3,678,110 3,584,282 
6,405,884 5,571,048 
8,989,077 8,714,776 

25.3 2,288,057 2,129,118 
14.1 82,396,483 87,444,594

14.2.1 21,922,242 23,450,414
35,285,311 32,650,570
9,080,675 7,431,549 
6,673,609 4,559,009 
4,891,821 4,005,132 

837,590,135 733,430,487

9.2 8,661,033 4,640,291

32.3 27,198,505 22,358,540

1,771,835 210,615

17,959,458 16,233,577

25.1 & 25.2

25.2.1 The CEO and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other 
benefits in accordance with the terms of employment.    

Managerial remuneration

Bonus

Gratuity

Provident fund 

22,236,071 168,494,074 20,214,645 143,570,050

19,208,600 50,366,501 13,730,400 35,280,000

1,924,272 13,857,076 1,729,900 11,921,411

1,282,850 9,176,146 1,166,227 8,006,944

44,651,793 241,893,797 36,841,172 198,778,405

Executives
June 30, 2015

CEO Executives
June 30, 2014

CEO
Rupees
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25.2.2

25.3 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fees

Half year review

Others

25.4 Employees Provident Fund

- Size of the fund (Rupees)

- Number of members

- Cost of investments made (Rupees)

- Percentage of investments made

- Fair value of investments (Rupees)

25.4.1

26 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:

 - Return on bank deposits

 - Interest on loans to employees

 - Return on investments - held to maturity

 - Unrealized gain on held-for-trading investments

Income from non-financial assets:

 - Gain on disposal of property and equipment

 - Penalties and fines

 - Others

 - Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investment

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 5,100,000 (2014:
Rs. 4,525,000).        

These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2015. The audited account of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. 
Investments out of Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 
and the rules formulated for this purpose.

27 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Donations

Workers welfare fund

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

1,436,643 1,258,514

391,314 346,060

460,100 524,544

2,288,057 2,129,118

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

57,124,619 80,129,141 

325 322 

46,836,191 56,059,100 

82.0% 70.0%

49,110,460 66,142,529 

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

5,616,888 4,293,402

127,696 163,549

105,212,348 88,383,060

25,542,724 31,934,736

163,269,514 136,119,554

3,300,098 3,186,250 

1,919,304 5,813,402 

231,735 947,544 

5,451,137 9,947,196
168,720,651 146,066,750

26,769,858 11,344,807

Note

27.1 17,408,187 12,481,313

13,579,517 9,735,425

30,987,704 22,216,738

27.1 Donation amounting to Rs. 3.75 million (2014: nil)  have been made to a donee in which a director has common directorship. No other 
director and their spouses had any interest in any other donees during the year.
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

142,191 154,550

239,200,000 152,000,000
- 10,768

(5,600,000) (4,000,000)
233,600,000 148,010,768

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

665,339,787 477,035,802

33% 34%

219,562,130 162,192,173
(5,929,099) (14,715,045)

- 10,768
19,966,969 522,872

233,600,000 148,010,768

431,739,787 329,025,034 

65,000,000 65,000,000 

Rupees Rupees

6.64 5.06

Number of shares

June 30, 2015
Note Rupees

23 40,659,271
22 1,811,501,834

1,852,161,105

June 30, 2014
Rupees

36,480,059
917,073,340
953,553,399

28

29

29.1

29.2

30

30.1

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Bank charges

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current
Prior
Deferred

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2014. 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before income tax

Enacted tax rate

Tax charge at enacted rate 

Tax for prior year
Others

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

Profit after income tax

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares 

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

Tax effect of exempt income or income taxed at different rate

30.2 Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted

31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term investments

Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 
2015 and 2014 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable. 
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32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Discount rate per annum (compound rate)
Salary increase rate

32.1 Statement of financial position item

The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

32.2

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Transfer to subsidiary - ITMinds Limited 
Expense for the year 
Payment to fund during the year 
Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income 
Balance at the end of the year

32.3

Current service cost
Net interest cost
Expected return on plan assets

Remeasurement losses on obligation
Remeasurement losses on plan assets
Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI 
Balance at the end of the year

32.4

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Transfer to Subsidiary - ITMinds Limited 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefit paid
Remeasurement losses on obligation
Balance at the end of the year

Movement in net defined benefit obligation

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation 

Movement in net defined benefit obligation

The gratuity is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the 
gratuity fund.

The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial assumptions 
used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) in respect of these benefits:

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

9.75% 13.25%

8.50% 10% to 12%

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

32.4 279,662,142 248,749,090
32.5 (247,954,607) (229,005,429)
32.2 31,707,535 19,743,661

19,743,661 8,995,595
- (106,104)

32.3 27,198,505 22,358,540
(24,929,343) (23,946,229)

9,694,712 12,441,859
9.1 31,707,535 19,743,661

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

24,610,671 20,959,976
33,670,560 23,987,238

(31,082,726) (22,588,674)
25.1 27,198,505 22,358,540

2,442,476 10,524,806
7,252,236 1,917,053
9,694,712 12,441,859

36,893,217 34,800,399

248,749,090 218,664,969
(5,527,889) (2,579,165)
24,610,671 20,959,976
33,670,560 23,987,238

(24,282,766) (22,808,734)
2,442,476 10,524,806

279,662,142 248,749,090

Rate per annum
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32.5 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Transfer to subsidiary - ITMinds Limited 
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss on plan assets
Balance at the end of the year 

Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation (PBO)

Split by Vested/Non-Vested
(i) Vested benefits
(ii) Non-vested benefits
Total

Split by Benefits earned to date
(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits
(ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase
Total

Maturity profile of Present value of defined benefit obligation

Weighted average duration of the Present value of defined benefit obligation

Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Time in years

1
2
3
4
5
6-10

32.6 Major categories/composition of plan assets are as follows:

Term Finance Certificates 
Special Saving Certificates 
Defense Saving Certificate
Mutual Funds
Bank balance 
Total fair value of plan assets

Base
Discount Rate +1%
Discount Rate -1%
Expected rate of salary increase +1%
Expected rate of salary increase -1%

Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions:
Actuarial Liability

These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2015. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 

The Company recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2016 works out to be Rs. 29 million.

229,005,429 209,669,374
(5,527,889) (2,473,061)
31,082,726 22,588,674
24,929,343 23,946,229

(24,282,766) (22,808,734)
(7,252,236) (1,917,053)

247,954,607 229,005,429

279,662,142 247,732,794
- 1,016,296

279,662,142 248,749,090

130,575,766 94,575,057
149,086,376 154,174,033
279,662,142 248,749,090

9.80 9.73

13,584,586 14,174,413
13,813,662 15,742,162
36,609,103 14,402,106
15,747,857 39,882,590
20,518,717 17,849,292

255,935,702 287,312,053

Rupees
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees

- 2,302,991
184,274,327 167,435,538

57,094,273 -
5,882,750 58,177,214

703,257 1,089,686
247,954,607 229,005,429

279,662,142 248,794,090
254,217,314 226,245,184
309,333,783 274,935,224
310,829,587 267,209,509
252,552,439 232,368,277

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
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33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Rent of premises paid to: 
-  Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company

Rent expense:
-  Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company

Mark-up earned - Associated companies

-  Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - Associated by virtue of common directorship

-  Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - Associated by virtue of common directorship

(Payable to) / receivable from ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary

Purchases / services received from ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary 

Related parties includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement benefit funds and directors 
and key management personnel and their close family members. Amounts due from/to related parties, and remuneration of directors and 
executives are disclosed in the following notes - except for those which are disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements. 

Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:

Shareholders

Directors

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship

Contributions to retirement plans

Investment in Subsidiaries

ITMinds Limited 
-  Balance at the beginning of the year
-  Investment made during the year
-  Balance at the end of the year

CDC Trustee Company Limited 

Receivable from CDC Trustee Company Limited - Subsidiary

Rental income from ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary

The shareholders and directors of the Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions 
in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:

(558,068)

17,038,302

10,434,651

11,644,185

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

5,527,080

6,314,496

5,527,080

6,290,636

176,565

787,416

763,556

6,166,766

6,882,602

5,024,760

5,718,904

206,882

715,836

694,144

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

42,297,813

1,336,949

16,827,135

43,066,636

15,000,000
35,000,000
50,000,000

50,000,000

-

360,000

27,409,318

1,249,028

30,197,321

41,188,915

15,000,000
-

15,000,000

50,000,000

30,400

360,000
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The Company has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return:

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)
Treasury Bills (TBills)
Term Deposit Certificates (TDCs)

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

15 & 22.4 943,369,837 575,957,775
22.2 340,991,662 331,561,843
22.1 227,036,816 201,411,774

1,511,398,315 1,108,931,392

33.1 The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices using the 
comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

33.2 The Company has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Company's policies and terms 
of employment.

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

34.1 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Market risk
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
- Capital risk (refer note 36)
- Liquidity risk   

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework.

34.1.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market 
price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand 
of securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk.

(a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.

The Company is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Company are carried out in the local currency.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Company has fixed 
interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of 
the interest rates and management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market interest 
rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Company does not expose the Company to interest rate risk substantially.

Investments in PIBs & TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return, where as investment in TDCs and TBills are for 
a period of 3 months and 3-6 months respectively. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the 
Company.
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Effective Less than Over one Over five 
mark-up one year year to years Mark-up
rates (%) five years bearing

Note

15 & 22 6.72 - 12.25
16 & 19 0.00 - 3.00

17
18
20
21
23 6.00 - 8.35

7 & 10 -
9 -

-

Effective Less than Over one Over five Non
mark-up one year year  to years Mark-up
rates (%) five years bearing

Note

15 & 22 11.80 - 11.87
16 & 19 0.00 - 3.00

17
18
20
21
23 6.00 - 8.35

7 & 10
9

4,785,935
1,511,398,315

-
-
-
-

38,291,843

1,554,476,093

532,973,617
1,668,974

-
-
-
-

28,662,459

563,305,050

-
-

-

-
2,181,826

-
-
-
-
-

2,181,826

-
-

-

575,957,775
1,831,012

-
-
-
-
- -

577,788,787

 
-
-

-

- 
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

- 
-
-
-
-
-

-

- 
-

-

400,103,519
9,176,005
6,165,018

168,422,573
41,887,810

1,378,870
2,367,428

629,501,223

114,547,498
262,064,318

376,611,816

449,099,723
15,376,672

5,842,118
155,699,860

29,918,658
13,321,635

7,817,600

677,076,266

112,909,998
199,204,406

312,114,404

Mark-up bearing

Mark-up bearing 

 Total 

      

 June 30, 2014
 Total 

 

1,911,501,834
16,143,766

6,165,018
168,422,573

41,887,810
1,378,870

40,659,271

2,186,159,142

114,547,498
262,064,318

376,611,816

1,558,031,115
18,876,658

5,842,118
155,699,860

29,918,658
13,321,635
36,480,059

1,818,170,103

112,909,998
199,204,406

312,114,404

Rupees

Rupees

Non
June 30, 2015

34.2

Financial assets 

Investments
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities 

Deposits 
Trade and other payables

Financial assets 

Investments
Loans 
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities 

Deposit 
Trade and other payables

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

34.3 Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in  an arm's length 
transaction. The Company prepares its unconsolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of 
available for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost and  recognition of staff retirement benefits on 
the actuarial valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on 
June 30, 2015.
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The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f).

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial loss.  
The Company is exposed to credit risk at very low level.

34.4 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Rating Highest Lowest 

Short Term A-1+ A-1+
Long Term AAA AA+

Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company's liquidity and 
cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall 
funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.

As at June 30, 2015 the Company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

34.5 Liquidity risk

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

Financial assets 

Non current assets 
Long term loans
Long term deposits

Current assets 
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances 
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Loan and 
receivables

Held for
trading

Available for
sale

Held to 
maturity Total 

Note

June 30, 2015

16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23

    

10,961,140
6,165,018

17,126,158

168,422,573
5,182,626

41,887,810
1,378,870

-
40,659,271

257,531,150
274,657,308

300,103,519
-

- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 

 
300,103,519
300,103,519    

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

1,317,968,912
-

1,317,968,912
1,317,968,912

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

193,429,403
-

193,429,403
193,429,403

10,961,140
6,165,018

17,126,158

168,422,573
5,182,626

41,887,810
1,378,870

1,811,501,834
40,659,271

2,069,032,984
2,086,159,142

Rupees

Deposits
Trade and other payable 

As at June 30, 2014 the company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

Deposits
Trade and other payable 

within 6 within 6-12 Sub 1 to 5 later than Sub Total
months months Total years 5 years Total

Note
7 & 10 734,998 - 734,998 - 113,812,500 113,812,500 114,547,498

9 293,771,853 - 293,771,853 - - - 293,771,853

294,506,851 - 294,506,851 - 113,812,500 113,812,500 408,319,351

within 6 within 6-12 Sub 1 to 5 later than Sub Total
months months Total years 5 years Total

Note
7 & 10 1,359,998 - 1,359,998 - 111,550,000 111,550,000 112,909,998

9 218,948,067 - 218,948,067 - - - 218,948,067

220,308,065 - 220,308,065 - 111,550,000 111,550,000 331,858,065

Current

Current Non Current

Non Current

Rupees

Rupees
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Financial assets 

Non current Assets 
Long term investments
long term loans
Long term deposits

Current Assets 
Trade debts - net
Loan and advances 
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Non current liabilities 

Long term deposits 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities 
Long term deposits 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

Note Loan and 
receivables 

Held for 
trading

Available for 
sales 

Held to maturity Total 

15 & 22 - - - 575,957,775
16 12,931,437 - - - 
17 5,842,118 - - - 

18,773,555 - 575,957,775

18 155,699,860 - - - 
19 5,945,221 - - - 
20 29,918,658 - - - 
21 13,321,635 - - - 
22 - 384,099,723 - 532,973,617
23 36,480,059 - - - 

241,365,433 - - 532,973,617
260,138,988 - - 1,108,931,392

Amortized cost Held for trading Total

7 111,550,000 - 

9 199,204,406 - 
10 1,359,998 - 

200,564,404       - 
312,114,404       - 

575,957,775
12,931,437

5,842,118
594,731,330

155,699,860
5,945,221

29,918,658
13,321,635

917,073,340
36,480,059

1,158,438,773
1,753,170,103

111,550,000

199,204,406
1,359,998

200,564,404
312,114,404

June 30, 2014

June 30, 2014

7 113,812,500 - 

9 262,064,318 - 
10 734,998 - 

262,799,316 - 
376,611,816 - 

113,812,500

262,064,318
734,998

262,799,316
376,611,816

Rupees

Rupees

Amortized cost Held for trading Total
June 30, 2015

Rupees

Annual Report 2015
Central Depository Company

103



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

36 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

It is the responsibiltiy of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company's ability to continue as going concern in order to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as profit after income tax divided by total 
shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. 

The Company finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk manage-
ment comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments and unappropriated profit.

There was no change in the Company's approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally 
imposed requirement.

37 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

38 EMPLOYEES

The directors in their meeting held on September 3, 2015 have proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3.25 per share (2014: cash dividend Rs.3 
per share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 32.5% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2015. The unconsolidated financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2015 do not include the effect of the above dividend which will be accounted for in the period in which it is 
approved by shareholders.

39 DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These unconsolidated financial statements were approved in the board of directors’ meeting held on September 3, 2015.

Number of employees at the end of the year
Average number of employees during the year

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

395 362
383 347
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The Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited are pleased to present their report together with Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its Subsidiary companies for the year 
ended June 30, 2015.

The consolidated results comprise of financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (The Holding 
Company) and its subsidiaries ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee Company Limited. The Holding Company has annexed its 
consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial statements, in accordance with the requirement of International 
Accounting Standard 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The Directors Report, giving a commentary on the 
performance of Central Depository Company for the year ended June 30, 2015 has been presented separately. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi, dated: Thursday, September 03, 2015

-Sd-

DIRECTORS’ REPORT ON AUDITED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

653

234

419

6.45

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit after tax

Earning per share (Rs.)

Rupees in million

Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Chief Executive Officer
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising of consolidated balance sheet of Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiaries ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee Company Limited as at 
June 30, 2015 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part 
thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed separate opinions on the financial statements of Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited and its subsidiary companies. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding 
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests of 
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Central Depository Company of Pakistan 
Limited and its subsidiary companies as at June 30, 2015 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.

Karachi
Date: September 03, 2015

-Sd-

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2015

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserve

750,000,000 750,000,000

5 650,000,000 650,000,000
Reserve fund 100,000,000 100,000,000
Unappropriated profit 1,338,409,847 1,116,565,271
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net 25,045,686 -

Total shareholders' equity 2,113,455,533 1,866,565,271
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net 6 475,083,518 483,986,168

2,588,539,051 2,350,551,439
Non-current liabilities

Long term deposits 7 113,787,500 111,525,000
Deferred taxation - net 8 83,873,751 71,711,601

Total non-current liabilities 197,661,251 183,236,601

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9 315,608,340 231,350,279
Short term deposits 10 734,998 1,359,998
Unearned fee 11 46,819,007 41,152,125
Taxation - net 12 20,398,304 2,508,492

Total current liabilities 383,560,649 276,370,894
Total liabilities 581,221,900 459,607,495

Contingencies and commitments 13

Total equity and liabilities 3,169,760,951 2,810,158,934

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets
Property and equipment 14 881,489,580 901,656,013
Intangibles 14.2 93,171,608 71,360,295

974,661,188 973,016,308
Long term investments 15 - 575,957,775
Long term loans 16 10,961,140 12,931,437
Long term deposits and prepayments 17 6,707,800 9,523,009

17,668,940 598,412,221
Total non-current assets 992,330,128 1,571,428,529

Current assets

Trade debts - net 18 172,844,230 160,003,190
Loans and advances 19 5,182,626 5,945,221
Prepayments 27,248,174 21,932,914
Mark-up accrued 20 41,887,810 29,918,658
Other receivables 21 2,913,881 6,365,805
Short term investments 22 1,811,501,834 971,735,547
Cash and bank balances 23 115,852,268 42,829,070

Total current assets 2,177,430,823 1,238,730,405
Total assets  3,169,760,951 2,810,158,934

Authorised share capital 
   75,000,000 (2014: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERCHAIRMAN
Sd- Sd-
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERCHAIRMAN
Sd- Sd-

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

Operating income 24 1,378,196,101 1,105,459,849

Operating and administrative expenses 25 (868,321,509) (758,898,452)

Operating profit 509,874,592 346,561,397

Other income 26 174,332,893 150,397,212

Other operating expenses 27 (30,987,704) (22,216,738)

Financial charges 28 (241,421) (219,617)

Profit before income tax 652,978,360 474,522,254

Income tax expense 29 (234,003,796) (148,127,591)

Profit after income tax 418,974,564 326,394,663

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 30 6.45 5.02

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

Profit after income tax 418,974,564 326,394,663

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of available for sale investment 37,381,621 6,816,264

Impact of deferred tax (12,335,935) -

Gain realised on disposal of investments - (11,344,807)

25,045,686 (4,528,543)

Items that will never be reclassified to profit and loss account

Loss on remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation (8,806,583) (12,588,950)

Impact of current tax 3,200,000 -

Impact of deferred tax (7,178,592) 4,230,232

(12,785,175) (8,358,718)

Total other comprehensive income / (loss) 12,260,511 (12,887,261)

Total comprehensive income 431,235,075 313,507,402

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account subsequently 

Surplus arising on revaluation of property and equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984, in a separate account below equity. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERCHAIRMAN
Sd- Sd-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax 652,978,360 474,522,254
Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds

Depreciation 14.1 83,090,230 88,128,426
Amortization 14.2.1 21,922,242 23,450,414
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 26 (3,921,281) (3,186,250)
Return on bank deposits 26 (6,434,774) (5,521,657)
Return on investments - held to maturity (63,810,190) (10,706,100)
Gain on sale of available for sale investments 26 (26,769,858) (11,344,807)
Financial charges 28 241,421 219,617
Provision for retirement benefit plan 32.3 28,798,047 22,979,936

33,115,837 104,019,579
686,094,197 578,541,833

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Trade debts - net (12,841,040) (28,481,445)
Loans and advances 762,595 (712,190)
Prepayments (5,315,260) (277,577)
Other receivables 3,451,924 (930,830)

(13,941,781) (30,402,042)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 73,465,991 33,746,817
Short term deposits (625,000) 375,000
Unearned fees 5,666,882 14,163,321

78,507,873 48,285,138
Decrease / (increase) in long term loans - net (assets) 1,970,297 (1,510,307)
Decrease in long term deposits and prepayments (assets) 2,815,209 534,775
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities) 2,262,500 6,575,000

7,048,006 5,599,468
Cash generated from operations 757,708,295 602,024,397

Contribution paid to retirement benefit plan 32.2 (26,812,560) (24,744,723)
Financial charges paid 28 (241,421) (219,617)
Income tax paid (218,513,824) (157,366,314)

(245,567,805) (182,330,654)
Net cash from operating activities 512,140,490 419,693,743

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure incurred (111,541,315) (112,777,632)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 8,805,244 7,944,289
Mark-up received 58,275,812 5,723,213
Investments - net 640,109,254 (85,936,232)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities 595,648,995 (185,046,362)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (195,000,000) (195,000,000)

Net cash used in financing activities (195,000,000) (195,000,000)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 912,789,485 39,647,381

1,014,564,617 974,917,236
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 31 1,927,354,102 1,014,564,617

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERCHAIRMAN
Sd- Sd-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

* Reserve Unappropriated Total
fund profit shareholders'

equity

Note

Balance as at July 1, 2013

  -  Other comprehensive income

6 - - 10,496,154 - 10,496,154

- - (195,000,000) - (195,000,000)

Balance as at  June 30, 2014 650,000,000 100,000,000 1,116,565,271 - 1,866,565,271   

Final dividend paid @ 30% ( i.e. Rs. 3 per share)

Surplus on 
revaluation of 

available for sale 
investment - net

  -  Profit after income tax

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up share 

capital

Rupees

Total comprehensive income 

Transaction with owners, recognised 
   directly in equity

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
    fixed assets on account of incremental 
    depreciation - net of deferred tax

Balance as at July 1, 2014 650,000,000 100,000,000 1,116,565,271 - 1,866,565,271

650,000,000 100,000,000 983,033,172 4,528,543 1,737,561,715

- - 326,394,663 - 326,394,663
- - (8,358,718) (4,528,543) (12,887,261)
- - 318,035,945 (4,528,543) 313,507,402

  -  Profit after income tax - - 418,974,564 - 418,974,564
  -  Other comprehensive income - - (12,785,175) 25,045,686 12,260,511

- - 406,189,389 25,045,686 431,235,075

6 - - 10,655,187 - 10,655,187

- - (195,000,000) - (195,000,000)

Balance as at  June 30, 2015 650,000,000 100,000,000 1,338,409,847 25,045,686 2,113,455,533   

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Total comprehensive income

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Holding Company.

Final dividend paid @ 30% ( i.e. Rs. 3 per share)

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
    fixed assets on account of incremental 
    depreciation - net of deferred tax

Transaction with owners, recognised 
   directly in equity

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERCHAIRMAN
Sd- Sd-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS1

1.1

The 'Group' consists of :

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company), and its subsidiaries namely ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee 
Company Limited.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION2

2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companied Ordinance, 1984 
(the Ordinance) approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise such International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies  
Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions 
of and directives issued under Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. The assets and 
liabilities of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the carrying value of the investment held by the Holding 
Company has been eliminated against corresponding holding in subsidiaries' shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial 
statements. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses have been eliminated.

The consolidated financial statements of the group are prepared for the same reporting year as the unconsolidated financial statements 
of the Holding Company and the subsidiaries, using same accounting policies consistently applied.

The Holding Company

The Holding Company was incorporated, as a public company with its liability limited by shares, on January 21, 1993 and received 
certificate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994.  The principal business activity of the Holding Company is to act as a 
depository for securities and to open securities account. The holding Company also acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities.
     
The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance 
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said 
regulations.

The Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and Centralized Information 
Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).

The registered office of the holding Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan.

ITMinds Limited

ITMinds Limited (ITML) was incorporated as public limited company on December 8, 2011 and received certificate of commencement of 
business on January 30, 2012. The principal activities of the Company is to provide Information Technology and Business Process 
Outsourcing (BPO) services.  The holding Company's controlling interest is 100%.
   
ITML has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2015.

CDC Trustee Company Limited

CDC Trustee Company Limited (CTCL) was incorporated as public limited unlisted Company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 on September 07, 2012 and received certificate of commencement of business on December 17, 2012. The registered 
office of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The company was formed with an objective to 
act as trustee for open-end funds & closed-end schemes, voluntary pension schemes and to provide custodial services to closed end 
funds, discretionary/non-discretionary portfolios. The holding Company's controlling interest is 100%.

CTCL has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2015.

Subsidiary companies
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards2.3

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Group and adopted in the current year2.3.1

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became 
effective during the current year.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant to the Group2.3.2

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on 
July 1, 2014 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's consolidated financial reporting and 
operations and are therefore not presented here.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Group2.3.3

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below 
against the respective standard or interpretation.

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2015.

Standard, amendments and interpretation

IAS 19 - Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

IFRIC 21 - Levies

IAS 36 - Recoverable amount Disclosures for non - financial assets (Amendments to IAS 36)

IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 - Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)

IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)

July 1, 2014

July 1, 2014

July 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

Effective Date

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

IAS 27 - Equity method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investment Entities : Applying the  Consolidation Exception

IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements)

Standard, amendments and interpretation

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016

Effective Date

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP 
for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

2.3.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan (SECP).

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Basis of measurement2.4

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement 
benefits at present value based on actuarial valuation, land-lease hold and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain 
investments at fair value, and amortised cost.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the Holding Company operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Holding Company's 
functional and presentation currency.

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES3

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Presentation and functional currency 2.5

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

General2.6

The figures have been rounded of to the nearest rupee.

IFRS 11 - Accounting for Interests in joint operations (Amendments to IFRS 11) January 1, 2016

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in other Entities

IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 9 -   Financial Instruments (2014)

Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods  beginning 
on or after)

January 1, 2016

IASB effective date

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated 
financial statements are as follows:

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates 
will not have material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Note

a) Staff retirement benefits 4.2

b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets 4.3

c) Revaluation of land and building 4.3 & 14

d) Investments 4.5

e) Impairment of doubtful trade debts 4.6

f) Taxation 4.10

Business combinations 4.1

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain 
control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity 
interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement, if 
any. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they have been 
previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally 
measured at their acquisition-date fair values. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES4

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies 
and methods of computation have been applied consistently to all the years presented.

Compensated absences4.2.3

The Holding Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective 
entitlement on cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the 
basis of management, estimates.

Staff retirement benefits4.2

4.2.1 Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees of the Holding Company and the 
subsidiaries who have completed minimum qualifying period of service as per the rules, laid down and joined the Group before January 1, 
2014. Contributions are made monthly to the fund on the basis of actuarial recommendations. Lastest actuarial valuation was carried out 
as at balance sheet date. The amount arising as a result of valuation are recognized in the balance sheet immediately. The significant 
actuarial assumptions are stated in note 32.

Provident fund

The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic 
salary are made to the fund by both the Group and the employees.

Defined Contribution Gratuity fund

The Group has established a defined contribution plan - Defined Contribution Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined the Group 
on or after January 1, 2014. Contributions are made by the Group to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.

4.2.2 Defined contribution plan

The Group also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

4.3 Property and equipment 

Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except for land and building which are 
stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Revaluation has been accounted for as per section 235 of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not 
capitalized and treated as a period cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.4.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14.1 and is charged to income. Depreciation on additions 
during the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of retirement/disposal.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major renovations and 
improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to profit and loss account currently. 

Leased

The Group accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are 
determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. 
Financial charges are allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. 
Depreciation is charged to income applying the same basis as for owned assets.

Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work in 
progress account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period 
are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Intangibles4.3.1

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Group, and that have probable economic benefit 
beyond one year are recognized as an intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight 
line method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Group.
     
Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal.

The amortization period for software is five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets4.3.2

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an 
expense in the profit and loss account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting 
of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk 
specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which these are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

Borrowing costs4.4

Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly 
attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account 
in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments4.5

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
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4.5.1 Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at cost including associated transaction costs except that are incurred on 
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which is the fair value of the consideration given for it. 

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
After initial recognition these are carried at amortized cost.

Held to maturity

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the Group has a positive 
intent and ability to hold these investments till maturity. After initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.

Available for sale

Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity 
prices, are classified as 'available for sale investment'. Financial assets at 'available for sale' are those non-derivative financial assets that 
are designated as available for sale financial asset, or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) 
held for trading investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and 
are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to 
surplus on remeasurement of 'available for sale' investment through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized 
and then the surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment is transferred to profit and loss account.

Held for trading investments

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in prices are classified as held 
for trading investment.

Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit and loss account. These investments 
are marked to market and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these 
investments are taken to the profit and loss account for the year.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial 
asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, if 
no impairment loss had been recognized.

4.5.2 Subsequent measurement

The financial assets are measured subsequently as described below:

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for those which are 
designated at fair value through profit and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with remeasurement gains or losses 
recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's fair value are reported in profit or loss account are included within 
finance costs or finance income.

(b)

- Loans and receivables; 
- Held to maturity; 
- Available for sale, and 
- Held for trading investment

(a) Financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:
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4.5.3 Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. 
Financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the profit and 
loss account immediately.

4.5.4 Off setting

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a legal right to set-off the 
transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.7 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when as a result of a past event, the Group has a legal or constructive 
obligation, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

4.8 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost which approximates to the fair value of the consideration to be paid 
in future for services.

4.9 Foreign currency translations

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance 
sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction 
date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to income currently.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the 
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value was determined.

4.11 Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of consolidated 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments which 
are highly liquid, that readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

4.10 Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and 
rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided for, using the balance sheet liability method, providing the temporary differences between the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is 
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available 
and credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted. The company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
     
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive 
income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity. 

4.6 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses, if any.
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4.12 Initial recognition

Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement 
in CDS on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis.

Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every 
trading day of the month at the respective Stock Exchange of Pakistan. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost.

Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.

Other fees are recognized when the Group renders the related services.
     
Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.
     
Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental 
to the sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.

Revenue from business process outsourcing services is recognised as the related services are performed, in accordance with specific 
terms of the contract with customers.

Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for the year in which they arise.

Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis. 

5.1 Associated companies held 48,037,600 (2014: 43,750,200) shares in the Holding Company as at year end.

4.13 Operating expense

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.

4.14 Interest and Dividends

Interest income and interest expense are reported on accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends other than those from 
investments in associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders of the Company is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the 
period in which such dividends are approved as per the legal framework.

4.15 Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Number of shares

10,000,000 10,000,000

55,000,000 55,000,000

65,000,000 65,000,000

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

100,000,000 100,000,000

550,000,000 550,000,000
650,000,000 650,000,000
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7.1 These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the 
CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, 1996, such deposits may be utilized by the 
Holding Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Due to:
- Participants
- Institution / qualified private investor
- Pledgees
- Issuers

43,150,000 42,650,000
27,325,000 26,700,000

1,200,000 1,300,000
42,112,500 40,875,000

113,787,500 111,525,000

8 DEFERRED TAXATION - net

- Provision for doubtful debts

- Deferred tax arising on defined benefit obligation - gratuity

- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model over tax written
  down value of property and equipment
- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 
- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary differences on:

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary differences on:

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

(382,518) (394,109)

- (7,178,592)

19,334,699 19,698,053
6 52,585,635 59,586,249

12,335,935 -
83,873,751 71,711,601

6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net

Transferred to accumulated profit:

- Related deferred tax liability

Less: Related deferred tax liability on:

- Incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to profit and loss account

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

- Surplus relating to incremental depreciation  transferred to unappropriated profit during
  the year - net of deferred tax

Surplus (gross) on revaluation of property and equipment as at the beginning of the year

Surplus (gross) on revaluation of property and  equipment at the end of the year 

- Remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate

Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 
at the end of the year 

- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment as at the beginning of the year

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

543,572,417 559,475,681

(10,655,187) (10,496,154)
(5,248,077) (5,407,110)

(15,903,264) (15,903,264)

527,669,153 543,572,417

(59,586,249) (66,904,928)

1,752,537 1,911,569

5,248,077 5,407,110

8 (52,585,635) (59,586,249)
475,083,518 483,986,168
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9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable to suppliers
Accrued expenses
Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations
Investor account services - current account
Workers' Welfare Fund 
Others

9.1 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations

Net defined benefit obligation
Accumulating compensated absences

9.2 Accumulating compensated absences

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expense for the year-recognised in profit and loss account
Payments made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

10 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Due to:
-  Participants
-  Institutions

11 UNEARNED FEE

Annual fee
 - Issuers
 - Investor Account Services (IAS)

Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee
Fresh issue fee
Sub account maintenance fee

12 TAXATION - net

Provision for taxation - net

12.1

 - Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance 
      Industry (CISSII) Partcipants

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed the order under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 
2008 creating a tax demand of Rs. 10.071 million from the Holding Company. The Holding Company had paid the tax demand and filed appeal 
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)] which was decided against the Holding Company vide order dated August 28, 2014. 
Presently, the appeal is pending before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, for adjudication. The Holding Company's Management, on the 
basis of opinion from its tax advisor, is of the view that the appeal would eventually be decided in the Holding Company’s favour.  

8,043,588 6,319,394
180,518,428 132,626,309

9.1 60,190,936 44,114,054
45,670,607 36,942,055
13,745,902 9,746,247

7,438,879 1,602,220
315,608,340 231,350,279

32.2 30,611,828 19,819,758
9.2 29,579,108 24,294,296

60,190,936 44,114,054

24,294,296 22,585,513
8,661,033 4,640,291

(3,376,221) (2,931,508)
29,579,108 24,294,296

261,137 261,137
473,861 1,098,861
734,998 1,359,998

2,823,937 1,800,993
18,924,732 17,614,603

4,560,004 4,000,000
20,125 -

- 139,722
20,490,209 17,596,807
46,819,007 41,152,125

20,398,304 2,508,492

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees
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13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1 Contingencies

13.2 Commitments

Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition 
    software, hardware and office equipments

During the year 2006-07, a suit filed by a sub account holder (investor) was decreed by a single judge of the Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) 
against the Holding Company and Lahore Stock Exchange Limited (LSE). The Holding Company filed an intra-court appeal against the order 
before a Divisional Bench (the Bench) of the LHC. The Bench has admitted the appeal for regular hearing. The Bench has also stayed the 
execution of judgment / decree passed earlier by the single judge. Subsequent to the financial year-end 2014-15, the Bench of the LHC vide its 
order dated 6-7-2015 settled the matter between LSE and legal heirs of investor through settlement agreement dated 20-02-2014. 

Afterwards, the Holding Company has also filed an Application in LHC for setting aside said decree and disposal of the case. Accordingly, LHC 
vide its order dated 24-08-2015 disposed of the said decree and judgment against the Holding Company without incurring any financial cost.

14 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets
Capital work-in-progress 

14.1 Operating assets

Year ended June 30, 2015

Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals 
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

As at June 30, 2015

Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year

Depreciation rate

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

21,116,452 9,128,907

75,135,631 896,819,018
29,374,377 65,585,767

(29,071,463) (64,084,540)
28,932,354 59,200,577

(139,109) (4,883,963)

(30,781,805) (83,090,230)
73,589,094 874,430,592

385,309,560 1,635,343,611
(311,720,466) (760,913,019)

427,777,000
-

-
-
-

-
427,777,000 

427,777,000
-

427,777,000

319,215,951
-

(46,249)
24,266

(21,983)

(26,506,997)
292,686,971

419,115,559
(126,428,588)
292,686,971

6,640,483
16,197,802

(11,786,499)
11,786,391

(108)

(3,469,828)
19,368,349

155,325,258
(135,956,909)

19,368,349

44,446,179
13,375,897

(17,333,045)
12,739,834
(4,593,211)

(14,708,767)
38,520,098

-
74,888,438

(36,368,340)
38,520,098

23,603,774
6,637,691

(5,847,284)
5,717,732
(129,552)

(7,622,833)
22,489,080

172,927,796
(150,438,716)

22,489,080 73,589,094 874,430,592

- 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

Computer 
equipmentVehicles 

Office 
equipment Building

Furniture, fixtures 
and electrical 

equipment

OWNED

Land- Lease 
hold

 Total operating 
assets 

14.1
14.1.3

Rupees

Rupees

874,430,592 896,819,018
7,058,988 4,836,995

881,489,580 901,656,013

Note

Annual Report 2015
Central Depository Company

123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

14.1.1

14.1.2

Land - lease hold and building have been revalued on June 30, 2012 by an independent valuer on the basis of professional assessments of the market values.

Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and net book value would have been as follows:

Land-Lease hold
Building

14.1.3 Capital work in progress

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions
-  Furniture, fixtures, electrical equipment and air conditioners

-  Building

-  Computers and office equipments

-  Vehicles

Transferred to property and equipment

Balance at the end of the year

Year ended June 30, 2014

Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals 
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year

Net book value at the end of the year

At June 30, 2014

Cost / revaluation
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year

Depreciation rate

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 June 30, 2014
Rupees

59,458,250 
212,055,364 

59,458,250 
212,101,613 

Cost
 June 30, 2015

Rupees
 June 30, 2014

Rupees

59,458,250
133,336,568

59,458,250
143,962,284

Net Book value

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

8,928,533

4,449,427

3,245,000

55,358,128

22,696,090

85,748,645

94,677,178

(89,840,183)

4,836,995

4,836,995

14,375,372

-

38,263,201

11,547,833

64,186,406

69,023,401

(61,964,413)

7,058,988

-
-
- (6)

 

344,453,358
1,245,000

(26,482,407)

319,215,951

419,161,808
(99,945,857)

319,215,951

12,784,744
4,912,271

(895,328)
895,322

(11,056,526)

6,640,483

150,913,955
(144,273,472)

6,640,483

40,147,996
24,359,090

(17,589,760)
12,770,093
(4,819,667)

(15,241,240)

44,446,179

75,928,157
(31,481,978)
44,446,179

20,808,086
17,994,578

(11,634,919)
11,423,433

(211,486)

(14,987,404)

23,603,774

172,137,389
(148,533,615)

23,603,774

52,105,742
43,410,744

(69,561,724)
69,541,718

(20,006)

(20,360,849)

75,135,631

384,982,017
(309,846,386)

75,135,631

898,076,926
91,921,683

(99,681,731)
94,630,566
(5,051,165)

(88,128,426)

896,819,018

1,630,900,326
(734,081,308)
896,819,018

427,777,000
-

-
-
-

-

427,777,000

427,777,000
-

427,777,000

- 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

OWNED

Office 
equipments 

Computer 
equipments

 Total operating 
assets Vehicles Land- Lease 

hold Building
Furniture, fixtures 

and electrical 
equipments

Rupees
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14.3 Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 50,000 or above:

14.2 Intangibles

Softwares
Softwares under implementation

14.2.1 Softwares

At July 1, 2014

Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2015

Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Amortization charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

At June 30, 2015

Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value at the end of the year

Amortization rate

14.2.2 Softwares under implementation

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Transferred to softwares
Balance at the end of the year

86,858,561
6,313,047

93,171,608

248,275,935
(183,907,133)

64,368,802

64,368,802
44,412,001

(21,922,242)
86,858,561

292,687,936
(205,829,375)

86,858,561

20%

6,991,493
43,733,555
50,725,048

14.2.1
14.2.2

14.2.1 (44,412,001)
6,313,047

64,368,802
6,991,493

71,360,295

213,865,140
(160,456,719)

53,408,421

53,408,421
34,410,795

(23,450,414)
64,368,802

248,275,935
(183,907,133)

64,368,802

20%

16,161,675
25,240,613
41,402,288

(34,410,795)
6,991,493

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

Particular 
of assets

iphone 5S

Honda City

Total 2015

Total 2014

Particulars of buyer

Sold to dealer 
(S.Z.Communication)

Sold to employee 
(Idress Saghar)

Written 
Cost Accumulated

depreciation
Down 
Value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain on
disposal

65,000

1,638,000

1,703,000

5,531,500

4,333

737,100

741,433

1,303,849

60,667

900,900

961,567

4,227,651

35,000

1,320,000

1,355,000

5,100,000

(25,667)

419,100

393,433

872,349

Rupees
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15 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investment - unquoted debt securities 

16 LONG TERM LOANS

Considered good - secured

- Housing loans
- Car loans

 Transferred to current maturity

Loan outstanding for period:

Less than three years
More than three years

Reconciliation of loan to executives 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Add: Disbursement /addition during the year

Less: Recovered during the year 

Balance at the end of the year

15.1 During the year Holding company has reclassified its investment from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale investment. The Group has 
disclosed the investment in note 22 of the consolidated financial statements.

16.1 Interest @ 3% per annum on reducing balance is recovered on housing and car loans and taken to income currently. However, no interest is 
recovered from employees who surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment period for housing and car loan is fifteen 
and five years respectively. These loans are secured against custody of title document of car and house.

16.2 The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 17.100 million (2014: Rs. 17.728 million).

17 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 

 - Utilities 
 - Rented premises
 - Clubs membership 

Prepayments

-

4,211,143
10,619,712

14,830,855
(3,869,715)

10,961,140

10,494,789
4,336,066

14,830,855

575,957,775

4,677,799
12,422,851

17,100,650
(4,169,213)

12,931,437

12,149,399
4,951,251

17,100,650

10,771,110
4,262,600

15,033,710
(5,332,950)

9,700,760

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014

Note Rupees Rupees

15.1

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

9,700,760
1,456,700

11,157,460
(2,472,483)

8,684,977

Note

16.1 &16.2
16.1 &16.2

19

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

4,868,018
1,247,000

50,000
6,165,018

542,782
6,707,800

 June 30, 2014
Rupees

5,085,840
1,247,000

250,000
6,582,840
2,940,169
9,523,009
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19.1 All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

16 3,869,715

916,220
396,691

1,312,911
5,182,626

4,169,213

1,014,241
761,767

1,776,008
5,945,221

18.1

18.2

119,901,799
52,942,431

172,844,230
1,159,136

174,003,366
(1,159,136)

172,844,230

109,903,148
50,100,042

160,003,190
1,159,136

161,162,326
(1,159,136)

160,003,190

 June 30, 2015  June 30, 2014

Note Rupees Rupees

18 TRADE DEBTS - net

Considered good:

 - Secured
 - Unsecured

Considered doubtful, unsecured

Provision for impairment

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.3.1

The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:

The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:

The Group reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. During the year no further provision has been made; consequently, opening 
balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to Rs. 0.4 
million (2014: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2014: 0.7 million) respectively remained valid till year end.

18.4 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs. 10.6 million (2014: Rs. 7.8 million).

Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 7.3 million (2014: Rs. 3.5 million).

19 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Current maturity of long term loans

Considered doubtful, unsecured

- Advance salary to employee
- Advance for expenses

Within 45 days 
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total 

Gross Impaired Net  Gross Impaired Net

 163,154,565 -  163,154,565  
 9,689,665 -  9,689,665  
 1,159,136 1,159,136 -  -

 174,003,366 1,159,136  172,844,230

 146,541,194
 13,461,996

 146,541,194
 13,461,996

1,159,136
 161,162,326

-
-

1,159,136
1,159,136  160,003,190

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Within 45 days 
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total 

Gross Impaired Net  Gross Impaired Net

 6,121,821
 1,155,698

-
 7,277,519

 6,121,821
 1,155,698

-
 7,277,519

- 
-
-
-

- 
-
-
-

 3,413,152
 71,671

-
 3,484,823

 3,413,152
 71,671

-
 3,484,823

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees

Rupees Rupees
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

22.4

-

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

-  
 

 

-
-
-

Note

22.1 & 31
22.2 & 31

22.3 & 31

22.1 & 31
22.2 & 31
22.4 & 31

242,666
41,645,144
41,887,810

1,535,011
1,378,870
2,913,881

193,429,403

300,103,519

227,036,816
147,562,259
943,369,837

1,811,501,834

327,662
29,590,996
29,918,658

935,731
684,493

4,745,581
6,365,805

201,411,774
331,561,843

438,761,930

971,735,547

Note

23.1

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

113,484,840 35,011,470

2,235,824 7,709,956
131,604 107,644

115,852,268 42,829,070

20

21

21.1

22

MARK-UP ACCRUED

Mark-up accrued on Bank deposits
Mark-up accrued on Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

OTHER RECEIVABLES

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 
Sales tax refundable
Others 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments - Unquoted debt securities 

-  Term Deposit Certificates 
-  Treasury Bills

Held for trading investments

Available for sale investments

-  Term Deposit Certificates 
-  Treasury Bills
-  Pakistan Investment Bonds 

All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4

This represents investment in Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 7.25% to 9.95% per annum (2014: 8.6% to 
9.9% per annum).

This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 6.72% to 9.97% per annum (2014: 8.96% to 9.98% 
per annum).

The Company has investments in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs). These are measured at fair value using  the effective interest 
method. The effective interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2014: 11.87% to 11.80%) per annum.

This represents investment in open ended mutual fund.

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances

-  in saving accounts

-  in current accounts
Cash in hand

23.1

23.2

The rate of profit varies from 6% to 8.35% (2014: 6% to 8.35%) per annum.

Bank balances include Rs. 3.840 million (2014: Rs. 3.501 million) held with related parties. 
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

738,309,744

326,364,832

27,174,050

18,689,022

3,188,168

(8,265,967)
1,105,459,849

120,632,747

270,126,646

44,330,849

18,910,000

167,165,277

70,165,543

22,197,055

10,375,749

12,147,478

2,258,400
738,309,744

150,151,729

Note

Note

24.1

24.2

24.3

24.1.1

24.1.2 (29,518,982)
120,632,747

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

343,428,165
24.2.1 (17,063,333)

933,982,481

403,423,649

33,700,529

12,856,935

3,948,825

(9,716,318)
1,378,196,101

153,841,158

344,841,394

54,064,698

27,452,000

211,555,272

129,833,425

7,431,264

-

2,528,470

2,434,800
933,982,481

185,362,053

(31,520,895)
153,841,158

425,355,542

(21,931,893)
403,423,649 326,364,832

24

24.1

24.1.1

24.1.2

24.2

24.2.1

24.3

OPERATING INCOME 

Depository services

Trusteeship and custodial services - net

Share registrar services

Miscellaneous

SECP Supervision Fee

Depository services

Transaction fee - net

Custody fee

Sub account maintenance fee

CDS connection fee

Securities induction fee

Annual fee

Cancellation fee

Pledge creation / release fee

Withdrawal fee

RSA service charges

Transaction fee - net

Transaction fee

Less: SECP Levy

Trusteeship and custodial services - net

Trusteeship and custodial services

Less: SECP Levy

Information Technology / Business Process Outsourcing services

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of Ps. 0.000405 (2014: 0.000405) per share as transaction 
fee which is borne by the Holding Company.

SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2014: 0.005%) of average annual assets of Open End Scheme and Closed End Scheme under 
its trusteeship.

SECP imposed a fee @ 1% (2014: 1%)  of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee.
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees

414,959,730

8,860,544

16,006,108

3,106,205

10,207,668

6,384,577

12,385,555

19,896,296

60,275,017

10,862,927

3,841,702

10,073,736

3,740,705

5,676,048

8,714,776

2,269,118

88,128,426

23,450,414

33,431,430

7,576,169

4,744,714

4,306,587
758,898,452

4,640,291

Note

25.1 & 25.2

25.2.2

25.3

14.1

14.2.1

9.2

32.2 22,979,936

210,615

496,011,487

8,853,073

13,720,932

3,970,877

11,016,230

8,739,798

14,372,806

22,551,299

63,431,495

19,147,853

4,222,357

17,978,968

3,824,558

6,525,884

8,989,077

2,440,607

83,090,230

21,922,242

36,005,923

9,205,535

6,943,696

5,356,582
868,321,509

8,661,033

28,798,047

1,771,835

17,959,458 16,233,577

25 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 

Travelling and conveyance

Vehicle running and maintenance

Training and development 

Communication

Printing and stationery

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional charges

Fee and subscription

Advertisement and publicity

Office supplies

Meeting expenses

Wide-area-network line rent

Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation 

Amortization

Fuel and electricity

Security services

Cafeteria

Miscellaneous

25.1

- Compensated absences - net

- Gratuity 

- Defined contribution gratuity fund

- Contribution to provident fund

25.2 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives:

Salaries and other benefits include; among other amounts:

Managerial remuneration
Bonus
Gratuity
Provident fund 

22,236,071
19,208,600

1,924,272
1,282,850

44,651,793

168,494,074
50,366,501
13,857,076

9,176,146

241,893,797

20,214,645
13,730,400
1,729,900
1,166,227

36,841,172

143,570,050
35,280,000
11,921,411

8,006,944

198,778,405

Executives

June 30, 2015

CEO Executives

June 30, 2014

CEO

Rupees
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25.2.1

25.2.2

25.3

25.4

25.4.1

26

27

27.1

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fees
Half year review
Others

Employees Provident Fund

- Size of the fund (Rupees)
- Number of members
- Cost of investments made (Rupees)
- Percentage of investments made
- Fair value of investments (Rupees)

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

 - Return on bank deposits
 - Interest on loans to employees
 - Return on investments - held to maturity

 - Gain on sale of financial assets available for sale investment

Income from non-financial assets

 - Gain on disposal of property and equipment
 - Penalties and fines
 - Others

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Donation
Workers welfare fund

 - Unrealized gain on held-for-trading investments

These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2015. The audited account of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. 
Investments out of Employee Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies 
Ordinance 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

The CEO and executives are provided with the Group maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other 
benefits in accordance with the terms of employment.

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 5,220,000  (2014: 
Rs. 4,630,000).

Donation amounting to Rs. 3.75 million (2014: nil)  have been made to a donee in which a director has common directorship. No other 
director and their spouses had any interest in any other donees during the year.

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Note

Rupees Rupees

1,589,193
391,314
460,100

2,440,607

57,124,619
325

46,836,191
82%

49,110,460

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

6,434,774
127,696

105,212,348
29,808,590
26,769,858

168,353,266

3,921,281
1,919,304

139,042
5,979,627

174,332,893

27.1 17,408,187
13,579,517
30,987,704

1,376,232
346,060
546,826

2,269,118

80,129,141
322 

56,059,100
70%

66,142,529

5,521,657
163,549

88,383,060
35,396,943
11,344,807

140,810,016

3,186,250
5,813,402

587,544
9,587,196

150,397,212

12,481,313
9,735,425

22,216,738
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

241,421 219,617

239,603,796 152,116,823
- 10,768

(5,600,000) (4,000,000)
234,003,796 148,127,591

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

652,978,360 474,522,254

33% 34%

215,482,859 161,337,566
(6,933,039) (13,743,615)

- 10,768
25,453,976 522,872

234,003,796 148,127,591

418,974,564 326,394,663

65,000,000 65,000,000

6.45 5.02

Note

23
22.2

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

115,852,268 42,829,070
1,811,501,834 971,735,547
1,927,354,102 1,014,564,617

Rupees

Rupees

No. of shares

28

29

29.2

30

30.1

31

29.1

30.2

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Bank charges

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current
Prior
Deferred

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before income tax

Tax rate

Tax charge at enacted rate 

Tax for prior year
Others

Tax effect of exempt income or income taxed at different rate

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term investments

The income tax assessments of the Holding Company (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year 2014.

The income tax assessments of the ITMinds Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year 2014.

The income tax assessments of the CDC Trustee Company Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax 
year 2014.

Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted

Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Group does has not any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2015 and 
2014 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable.
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Note

32.4
32.5
32.2

32.3

June 30, 2014

13.3%
10% to 12%

June 30, 2014
Rupees

252,282,356
(232,462,598)

19,819,758

8,995,595
22,979,936

(24,744,723)
12,588,950
19,819,758

21,542,502
24,653,899

(23,216,465)
22,979,936

10,358,469
2,230,481

12,588,950

218,664,969
21,542,502
24,653,899

(22,937,483)
10,358,469

June 30, 2015

9.75%
8.5%

June 30, 2015
Rupees

289,800,093
(259,188,265)

30,611,828

19,819,758
28,798,047

(26,812,560)
8,806,583

30,611,828

26,200,738
34,187,202

(31,589,893)
28,798,047

1,583,695
7,222,888
8,806,583

252,282,356

Rate per annum

26,200,738
34,187,202

(24,453,898)
1,583,695

289,800,093 252,282,356

June 30, 2014
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

32

32.1

32.2

32.3

32.4

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Discount rate per annum (compound rate)
Salary increase rate

Net balance sheet position

The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Contribution to the fund during the year 

Balance at the end of the year

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets

Remeasurement losses on obligation
Remeasurement losses on plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Movement in net defined benefit obligation

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income 

Expense for the year - recognised in profit and loss account

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Amounts recognised in profit and loss account and other comprehensive income

Expense for the year - recognised in profit and loss account

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income 

Amounts recognised in profit and loss account and other comprehensive income

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefit paid
Remeasurement losses on obligation
Balance at the end of the year

The defined benefits are payable to eligible employees on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in 
accordance with the rules of the gratuity fund.

The obligations under the scheme were determined through an actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit method. The principal actuarial 
assumptions used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and other comprehensive income in respect of these benefits:
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32.5 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss on plan assets
Balance at the end of the year 

Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation (PBO)

Split by vested/non-vested
(i) Vested Benefits
(ii) Non-Vested benefits
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Split by benefits earned to date
(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits
(ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Maturity profile of present value of defined benefit obligation

Weighted average duration of the Present value of defined benefit obligation

Long Term Salary Increases -1%

32.6

32.7

Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Time in years

1
2
3
4
5
6-10

Term Finance Certificates 
Special Saving Certificates 
Mutual Funds
Defence Saving Certificates 
Bank balance 
Fair value of plan assets

Base
Discount Rate +1%
Discount Rate -1%
Long Term Salary Increases +1%

Major categories/composition of plan assets at fair value are as follows:

Effect of change in actuarial asumptions on the present value of defined benefit obligation 

261,497,740  235,577,098

289,800,093 252,282,356
263,225,779 
320,814,828 278,957,107

229,371,399

322,366,780 271,118,386

232,462,598 209,669,374
31,589,893 23,216,465
26,812,560 24,744,723

(24,453,898) (22,937,483)
(7,222,888) (2,230,481)

259,188,265 232,462,598

289,800,093 251,046,345
- 1,236,011

289,800,093 252,282,356

134,581,777 95,663,821
155,218,316 156,618,535
289,800,093 252,282,356

9.88 9.73

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees

14,128,492 14,364,134
14,459,322 16,002,353
37,391,365 14,713,376
16,610,810 40,304,716
21,469,493 18,418,887

262,311,342 291,761,564

- 2,337,758
192,622,931 169,963,220

6,149,270 59,055,484
59,680,946 -

735,118 1,106,136
259,188,265 232,462,598

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

32.8 The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2016 as estimated by the actuary amounts to Rs. 30.4 million.
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

5,527,080 

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

6,166,766

715,836
6,882,602

5,024,760

694,144
5,718,904

206,882

27,409,318

1,249,028

30,197,321

41,188,915

6,314,496 

5,527,080 

6,290,636

176,565

42,297,813

1,336,949

16,827,135

43,066,636

787,416

763,556 

33

33.1

34

34.1

33.2

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Rent of premises paid to: 

Rent expense:

Mark-up earned - Associated companies

Revenue earned by transactions with Shareholders

Revenue earned by transactions with Directors

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship

Contributions to retirement benefit plans

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

Financial risk management

- Market risk
- Credit risk 

- Liquidity risk 
- Capital risk (refer note 36)

-  Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - Associated by virtue of common directorship

-  Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated by virtue of shareholding

-  Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - Associated by virtue of common directorship

-  Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated by virtue of shareholding

Related parties include major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement benefit funds and directors 
and key management personnel and their close family members. Amounts due from/to related parties, and remuneration of directors and 
executives are disclosed in the relevant notes.

Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statments are as follows:

The shareholders and directors of the Holding Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from 
transactions in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:

The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm's length prices using the comparable 
uncontrolled valuation method.

The Group has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Group's policies and terms of 
employment.

The board of directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Note Rupees Rupees

22.4 & 31 943,369,837 575,957,775

22.2 340,991,662 331,561,843

22.1 227,036,816 201,411,774
1,511,398,315 1,108,931,392

34.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price 
due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of 
securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk.

(a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.
     
The Group is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transaction of the Group are carried out in the local currency.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Group has fixed 
interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity 
of the interest rates and management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market 
interest rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Group does not expose the Group to interest rate risk substantially.

The Group has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return:

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Treasury Bills (TBills)

Term Deposit Certificates (TDCs)

Investments in PIBs & TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return, where as investment in TDCs and TBills are for a period of 
3 months and 3-6 months respectively. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Group.

34.3 The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

Financial assets 

Investments
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts - net
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities 

Deposits
Trade and other payables

June 30, 2015
Effective Less than Over one Over five Non  Total 
mark-up one year year  to years Mark-up
rates (%) five years bearing

Note

15 & 22 6.72 - 12.25 1,511,398,315 - 300,103,519 1,811,501,834
16 0.00 - 3.00 4,785,935 2,181,826 9,176,005 16,143,766
17 -

- -
- 6,165,018 6,165,018

18 172,844,230 172,844,230
20 -

- -

-

-
- 41,887,810 41,887,810

21 2,913,881 2,913,881
23 6.00 - 8.35 113,484,840 - 2,367,428 115,852,268

1,629,669,090 2,181,826 535,457,891 2,167,308,807

7 & 10 114,522,498 114,522,498
9

- -
271,250,610 271,250,610

- -

-
-
-

-

-

-

-
- -
- -

-

- 385,773,108 385,773,108

Mark-up bearing

Rupees
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34.4

34.6

34.5

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length 
transaction. The Group prepares its consolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of available 
for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost and recognition of staff retirement benefits on the 
actuarial valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 
30, 2015.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Group's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Group's liquidity and cash 
flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding 
mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial loss. 
The Group is exposed to credit risk at very low level.

The Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f).

Rating

Short Term 

Long Term

Highest Lowest 

A-1+ A-1+

AAA AA+

Financial assets 

Investments
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts - net
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities 

Deposits
Trade and other payables

June 30, 2014
Effective Less than Over one Over five Non  Total 
mark-up one year year  to years Mark-up
rates (%) five years bearing

Note

15 & 22 6.72 - 12.25  532,973,617  575,957,775 -
16 0.00 - 3.00  1,369,383  1,831,012 -
17 - - -
18
20 -

-
-

- -

- -
-
-21

23 6.00 - 8.35  35,011,470 - -

 569,354,470  577,788,787 -  665,126,286  1,812,269,543

7 & 10
9 -

-
-
- -

-

- - -  314,669,272  314,669,272
- - -  201,784,274  201,784,274

Mark-up bearing

 438,761,930 
 15,676,263 

 6,582,840 
 29,918,658 

 160,003,190 
6365805

 7,817,600 

 112,884,998 
201,784,274

 112,884,998 
201,784,274

1,547,693,322 
 18,876,658 

 6,582,840 
 29,918,658 

 160,003,190 
 6,365,805 

 42,829,070 

Rupees

Annual Report 2015
Central Depository Company

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2015

As at June 30, 2015 the Group's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 

Deposits
Trade and other payables 

As at June 30, 2014 the Group's liabilities have contractual maturities as summarised below:

Deposits
Trade and other payables 

within 6 within 6-12 Sub 1 to 5 later than Sub Total
months months Total years 5 years Total

Note
7 & 10 734,998 - 734,998 - 113,787,500 113,787,500 114,522,498

9 301,862,438 - 301,862,438 - - - 301,862,438
302,597,436 - 302,597,436 - 113,787,500 113,787,500 416,384,936

within 6 within 6-12 Sub 1 to 5 later than Sub Total
months months Total years 5 years Total

Note
7 & 10 1,359,998 - 1,359,998 - 111,525,000 111,525,000 112,884,998

9 221,604,032 - 221,604,032 - - - 221,604,032
222,964,030 - 222,964,030 - 111,525,000 111,525,000 334,489,030

Current

Current Non Current

Non Current

Rupees

Rupees

Financial assets 

Non current assets 
Long term investments
Long term loans
Long term deposits

Current assets 
Trade debts-net
Loans and advances 
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Non current liabilities 
Long term deposits 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

Note

15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23

7

9
10

Loan and 
receivables Held for trading Available for sales Held to maturity Total 

- - - -
10,961,140 - -

6,165,018 - -
17,126,158 - -

172,844,230 - -
5,182,626 - -

41,887,810 - -
2,913,881 -

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
- -

- 300,103,519 1,317,968,912 193,429,403 
115,852,268 -- -
338,680,815 300,103,519 1,317,968,912 193,429,403
355,806,973 300,103,519 1,317,968,912 193,429,403

10,961,140
6,165,018

17,126,158

172,844,230
5,182,626

41,887,810
2,913,881

1,811,501,834
115,852,268

2,150,182,649
2,167,308,807

Amortized Cost Held for trading Total 

113,787,500 - 113,787,500

271,250,610 - 271,250,610
734,998 - 734,998

271,985,608 - 271,985,608
385,773,108 - 385,773,108

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2015

Rupees

Rupees
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36

37

39

38

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business, safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit 
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitor the return on 
capital, which the Group defines as net profit after tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of 
dividend to ordinary shareholders.

The Group finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management 
comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities and unappropriated profit.        
        
There was no change in the Group's approach to capital management during the year and company is not subject to externally imposed 
requirement.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The directors in their meeting held on September 3, 2015 have proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3.25 per share (2014: cash dividend Rs.3 per 
share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 32.5% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2015. The consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2015 do not include the effect of the above dividend which will be accounted for in the period in which it is approved by 
shareholders.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These consolidated financial statements were approved in the Board of Directors’ meeting held on September 3, 2015.   

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees
Average number of employees during the year

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

429 380

408 358

CHAIRMAN
Sd-

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Sd-

Financial assets 

Non current assets 
Long term investments
Long term loans
Long term deposits

Current assets 
Trade debts-net
Loans and advances 
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Non current liabilities 
Long term deposits 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

Note

15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23

7

9
10

Loan and 
receivables Held for trading Available for sales Held to maturity Total 

- -
- -

 -

-
-
- -

-

-
 -

-
 -

-   971,735,547

 971,735,547

575,957,775

575,957,77519,514,277

 
-

 245,061,944
 264,576,221

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-  1,547,693,322

 595,472,052

2,150,182,649
2,167,308,807

Amortized Cost Held for trading Total 

 111,525,000  111,525,000-

- 201,784,274
 1,359,998

 201,784,274
 1,359,998-

 203,144,272 -
 314,669,272

 203,144,272
 314,669,272-

June 30, 2014

June 30, 2014

Rupees

Rupees

  12,931,437 
 6,582,840

 575,957,775 
 12,931,437 

 6,582,840 

 160,003,190 
 5,945,221 

 29,918,658 
 6,365,805 

 971,735,547 
 42,829,070 

 160,003,190 
 5,945,221 

 29,918,658 
 6,365,805 

 42,829,070 
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at June 30, 2015

No. of Shareholders   Shareholdings    Total shares held

NIT and IDBL

Banks / DFIs / NBFIs 

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

Shareholders holding 10% (or more)

General Public

Others

-

-

-
-

4,150

-

-
-

4,150
65,000

325,000
422,499
650,000

1,625,000
1,787,000
6,500,000
8,249,301

19,498,850
25,873,200

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their spouse and minor children (Note)

* These are qualification shares given to directors pursuant to Section 187 (h) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with Article 95 of 
Company’s Articles of Association.

Note: These are qualification shares given to directors pursuant to Section 187 (h) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with Article 95 of 
Company’s Articles of Association.

Categories of Shareholders      Shares held      Percentage

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties

- Karachi Stock Exchange Limited
- Lahore Stock Exchange Limited
- MCB Bank Limited
- Industrial Development Bank Limited
- Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

- Karachi Stock Exchange  Limited
- Lahore Stock Exchange  Limited
- MCB Bank Limited
- Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation

- Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited
- Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd.

a. Local
b. Foreign

- National Investment Trust Limited
- Industrial Development Bank Limited

- IGI Insurance Limited 422,499 0.65%

- MCB Bank Limited
- Habib Bank Limited
- National Investment Trust Limited
- Industrial Development Bank Limited
- NIB Bank Limited
- Allied Bank Limited
- Innovative Investment Bank Limited

25,875,200
6,500,000
6,500,000
3,250,000
1,787,500

4,124,900
3,250,000

6,500,000
4,124,901
4,124,900
3,250,000
3,250,000

650,000
325,000

25,875,200
6,500,000
6,500,000
6,500,000

1,625,000
65,000

2.50%
0.10%

39.80%
10.00%
10.00%
10.00%

10.00%
6.35%
6.35%
5.00%
5.00%
1.00%
0.50%

6.35%
5.00%

39.80%
10.00%
10.00%

5.00%
2.75%

08
01
01
01
01
01
01
02
02
03
01

shareholding from 1 to 1,000 shares *
shareholding from 1,001 to 65,000 shares
shareholding from 65,001 to 325,000 shares
shareholding from 325,001 to 425,000 shares
shareholding from 425,001 to 650,000 shares
shareholding from 650,001 to 1,625,000 shares
shareholding from 1,625,001 to 1,790,000 shares
shareholding from 1,790,001 to 3,250,000 shares
shareholding from 3,250,001 to 4,125,000 shares
shareholding from 4,125,001 to 6,500,000 shares
shareholding from 6,500,001 to 25,880,000 shares

22 Total 65,000,000
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

     

(Revenue stamp of Rs. 5/-)

PROXY FORM

WITNESS 2:

Signature of Appointer

(Name & Designation)

WITNESS 1:

Signature:
Name:
Designation:
Address:
CNIC No.:

Signature:
Name:
Designation:
Address:
CNIC No.:

Specimen signature of ProxySpecimen signature of Proxy

Notes:

We, ___________________________ of ___________, being a member of Central Depository 

Company of Pakistan Limited holding ______________ ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio 

No. _______________ and / or CDC Account No. __________________ do hereby appoint 

Mr. _______________________ or failing him Mr. _______________________ as our Proxy in our 

absence to attend and vote for us, and on our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 

to be held on September 29, 2015 or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ___________ day of _____________ 2015 signed by the said.

1.. A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such Corporation or such other Company, 
 is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials or any other person to act as its authorized 
 representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same 
 powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other Company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote 
 instead of him / her.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised in writing or if such 
 appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy 
 of that power or authority alongwith attested CNIC copies or passport of proxy, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
 not less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.
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Registered Office:
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400.
Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500   I   Fax: (92-21) 34326031

 
KSE Branch:
Mezzanine Floor, Karachi Stock Exchange Building,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Tel: (92-21) 32416774   I   Fax: (92-21) 32444491

 
Lahore Branch:
307, 2nd Floor, Upper Mall, Lahore – 54000.
Tel: (92-42) 35789378   I   Fax: (92-42) 35789340

Islamabad Branch:
Room # 410, 4th Floor, Islamabad Stock Exchange Towers,
55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.
Tel: (92-51) 2895456-9   I   Fax: (92-51) 2895454

 
Email: info@cdcpak.com

 
URL: www.cdcpakistan.com 

Customer Support Services: 0800 – 23275 (CDCPL)

For Overseas Callers: +92 (21) 34326038
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